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FOREWORDS

Chief Executive’s Foreword

It would be true to say that the last twelve 
months have been a landmark year for Wye 
Valley NHS Trust.

It began with the Trust having been 
through two Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) inspections in the previous two 
years. The first put it into special measures, 
the second keeping it in special measures 
with a rating of “inadequate”.

Against this backdrop, the staff have 
shown amazing resilience despite the 
growing and seemingly incessant increase 
in demand on services. In July the Trust was 
inspected by the CQC and was lifted out of 
special measures for quality and safety in 
November.

This marked a turning point and catalyst for 
change, most notable of which has been 
the creation of the strategic partnership 
with South Warwickshire NHS Foundation 
Trust, which began in November.

Leading up to July’s inspection, a major 
reorganisation of services within the Trust 
created two divisions, bringing clearer lines 
of accountability and providing more direct 
line management support to individuals.

This gave the Trust greater capability 
at a senior level to deliver the required 
improvements demanded by the CQC.

Evidence of the improvements came via a 
positive inpatients survey with improved 
performance in areas such as the privacy 
and dignity of patients, more patient 
involvement in decisions about their care 
and generally how well looked-after 
patients felt.

The Trust’s Quality Improvement 
Programme became the roadmap of 
activity to address the CQC’s areas of 
concern.

Disappointingly, the Trust’s ambitious 
Estates Strategy has been put on hold 
somewhat due to the precarious state of 
NHS finances nationally.

Nevertheless, patients are benefiting from a 
new mobile eye unit which was installed at 
the County Hospital in September thanks to 
the generosity of the Geoffrey Lewis Fund. 
This comes as a real boost to the 36,000 
visitors seen at the Victoria Eye Unit at the 
hospital each year.

It was my privilege to become the Chief 
Executive of this Trust, as well as SWFT, and 
in the relatively short time I have been here 

I can report what an encouragement it has 
been to see so many caring, committed and 
professional members of staff.

We still face a huge challenge, not least to 
resolve the perilous financial situation the 
Trust finds itself in, but I’m convinced that 
with the senior leadership now in place and 
the obvious willingness and passion of staff 
to succeed, this Trust can deliver its full 
potential and serve local people with the 
quality of service we’d want for our family 
and friends.

At the start of 2017 we launched our 10 
Point Plan, which outlines our key areas 
of activity for the coming months – further 
details of these can be found on page 6.

Following the publication of this year’s NHS 
staff survey results, we now have further 
valuable information and insight which is 
feeding into our improvement activities.

We have the will and determination to 
deliver the best we can and I look forward 
to leading this Trust forward to exchange 
its “requires improvement” CQC rating to 
“good”.

Glen Burley 
Chief Executive
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Chairman’s Foreword

It’s a great privilege to introduce the 
2016/17 Report and Accounts of Wye 
Valley NHS Trust.

These last twelve months have been the 
most financially challenging for the NHS 
nationally as well as for this Trust.

Demand for beds remains at an all-time 
high, and like other Trusts, Wye Valley NHS 
Trust has been exploring ways of improving 
patient flow.

Over and above all this, the Trust has 
managed to lift itself out of special 
measures and I’m particularly honoured to 
have been invited to become the Chairman 
of the Trust, a position I took on in 
November 2016.

In the short time I’ve been here I can 
see that, with the One Herefordshire 
work programme and more recently the 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan for 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire, there 
is a shift with more emphasis on keeping 
people well and helping them to avoid 
coming into hospital in the first place. 
Another key element is to help those who 
are ill to self-manage their illness and 
provide care for them closer to their home.

This all contributes to a changing landscape 
of health and care provision for this Trust 
and its partners across Herefordshire and 
further afield as we work towards the 
ambitions of the Five Year Forward View.

We have our ten key priority areas, 10 Point 
Plan, that we are focusing on – the subject 
of a further article on page 6.

But key to the success of this Trust will 
be addressing the huge financial deficit it 
currently faces.

This is not something the Trust can do 
entirely on its own and I look forward to 
working more closely with colleagues from 
partner health and care providers as well as 
commissioners of our services as we work 
together to tackle this huge challenge.

Following what has been a hugely 
important year for the Trust, I’d like to pay 
tribute to our dedicated staff and the senior 
management and my fellow Non-Executive 
Directors.

Having only been here for part of this last 
year, I have only seen part of the journey 
that the Trust has travelled. I appreciate 
the huge amount of work which had taken 
place prior to my arrival which contributed 

to the Trust coming out of special 
measures.

I would also like to commend those 
organisations which we work with and rely 
on to provide integrated health and care 
services across Herefordshire.

Without your support and willingness to 
go the extra mile we would not be able to 
deliver the quality of care that we currently 
provide and aspire to.

And last of all I’d like to pay tribute to the 
many volunteers who work across the 
Trust. I genuinely want to say thank you for 
your dedication and commitment to the 
Trust.

You play a key and vital role and without 
your contribution the experience of our 
patients would be all the poorer.

Thank you.

Russell Hardy 
Chairman
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1a Overview of Wye Valley 
NHS Trust 

Wye Valley NHS Trust was established on 1 
April 2011. The Trust provides community 
care and hospital care to a population of 
just over 186,000 people in Herefordshire 
and a population of more than 40,000 
people in mid-Powys, Wales. The Trust’s 
catchment area is characterised by its rural 
nature and remoteness, with more than 
53% of its population living more than fi ve 
miles from Hereford city or a market town. 
We are the only secondary care provider 
for an area where the average age of 
the population is older than the national 
average. This demographic is driving health 
and social care needs that are often more 
complex than in areas where the average 
age of patients is lower. 

All dates referred to in this report are for 
the year 1 April 2016 – 31 March 2017, 
unless otherwise specifi ed.

1b Strategic Objectives

Our strategic objectives are to: 

•  Improve the quality and safety of care to 
our patients, their carers and families 

•  Improve the responsiveness of our 
services for the benefi t of our patients 
and their families

•  Provide more productive, better value 
care that improves the sustainability of 
our services 

•  Develop a highly skilled, motivated and 
engaged workforce 

•  Develop fi rst class facilities and 
technology to support the care we 
provide 

•  Transform health and wellbeing through 
working with our partners 

•  Play our role as an important asset to 
the people of Herefordshire and the 
surrounding areas



6

1c 10 Point Plan 

Ten key areas have been identified to build on the improvements already made that lifted the Trust out of special measures.

The plan is a roadmap which lists ten important areas of work which will form key areas of focus as the Trust seeks to improve quality and 
safety and improve our efficiency and performance.

01 Deliver A&E Standard
Implement National Plan recommendations and 7 day working 
solutions, assess contribution from community flow including 
community hospital length of stay improvement and admission 
avoidance

02 Deliver RTT Standard
Address reporting compliance and develop capacity plans to deliver 
sufficient elective activity in house

03 Financial Benchmarking
Carry out financial benchmarking exercise (income and expenditure) 
between WVT and South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust 
(SWFT) and from this inform 2 year Financial Recovery Plan

04 Reduce Spend on Agency Nursing
Develop an agency reduction plan which focuses on skill mix and 
safe staffing review, effective rostering, staff engagement, bank 
relaunch with supporting Comms campaign

05 Medical Workforce Review
Carry out a review of medical workforce and job planning  
reducing the use of locum staff and ensuring sufficient in house 
capacity to deliver national standards

06 Progress One Herefordshire Plan
Develop a new model of care in collaboration with 2G NHSFT, Taurus 
GP Federation, Herefordshire CCG and Herefordshire Council

07 Review and Streamline Governance
Review leadership portfolios, divisional structure and supporting 
governance arrangements ensuring delivery of agreed corporate 
objectives and effective use of management capacity

08 Assess Clinical Sustainability Models
Agree sustainable acute delivery model as part of Sustainability  
and Transformation Plan

09 Agree Financial Recovery Trajectory with  
NHS Improvement
Negotiate revised control total or other financial support package 
including agreement with Commissioners on income/fines exposure

10 Review Organisational Sustainability
Work in partnership with SWFT to agree a sustainable corporate 
model for WVT

Enhanced 
Quality and 

Safety

Improved 
Efficiency and 
Performance

1
POINT
PLAN
Starting our 
journey to
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1d  Developing Our CARE 
Values

They are: 

Compassion – we will support 
patients and others, putting individuals 

at the heart of every decision and ensuring 
they are cared for with compassion, dignity 
and respect 

Accountability – we will act with 
integrity, assuming responsibility for 

our actions and decisions 

Respect – we will treat every individual 
in a non-judgemental manner, ensuring 

privacy, fairness and confidentiality 

Excellence – we will challenge 
ourselves to do better and strive for 

excellence

These are now being embedded in 
our recruitment, appraisal and reward 
processes. 

1e Improvements to Service 
Structures

During 2016 a new clinical and operational 
structure of services was consulted upon 
and implemented.

The changes aim to ensure better 
governance, leadership and resilience and 
were in response to issues raised by the 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) during its 
inspections.

The major change saw the Trust move 
from three service units to two divisions; 
Medical Division and Surgical Division.

In addition a number of new posts were 
created to strengthen clinical leadership, 
multidisciplinary working and improve 
reporting lines and accountability. 

These were:

•  Two Associate Medical Directors leading 
the Clinical Divisions

•  Seven new clinical leadership roles 

•  A Deputy Director of Nursing

•  A Deputy Chief Operating Officer

The new structure was introduced in 
June 2016 and a number of benefits / 
improvements have already been realised. 
These include:

•  Improved clinical governance structures

•  Greater engagement with the clinical 
workforce

•  Improved multidisciplinary working

•  Clearer lines of accountability and 
responsibility

In March 2017 a management of change 
process concluded to introduce a new 
division in April 2017.
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2 Performance Analysis

2a Partnership Helps Trust 
Move Forward

Wye Valley NHS Trust was delighted to be 
lifted from special measures, in November 
2016, having spent some time driving 
forward changes and improvements to 
meet Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
standards.

Throughout this time, CQC inspectors 
continually rated the quality of care as good 
and now the overall rating of the Trust is 
‘requires improvement’.

Thanks to the hard work of our staff, we 
are now moving into the next stage of our 
drive to ensure our long-term sustainability, 
having agreed a strategic partnership with 
South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust 
(SWFT). SWFT shares a similar demography 
and size with the Trust and played a 
key role, as our buddy organisation, in 
supporting us to move out of special 
measures.

The two Trusts now share a Chief Executive 
and Chairman and work closely together 
to share best practice and implement new 
ways of working to ensure the Trust is 
fit for the future and serves patients and 
service users well. The benefits of this 
alliance means that:

•  Local services can continue to be shaped 
and delivered locally

•  Cost savings can be made resulting 
from economies of scale and adopting 
standard practices across both Trusts

•  A single set of clinical guidelines for both 
Trusts can be adopted

2b CQC Report for Wye 
Valley NHS Trust

Overall 
rating

Requires 
improvement Amber

Safe
Requires 
improvement

Amber

Effective
Requires 
improvement

Amber

Caring Good Green

Responsive Inadequate Red

Well led
Requires 
improvement

Amber

The report acknowledged outstanding 
practice in; 

•  Gilwern Assessment Unit – dementia 
friendly environment

•  Non invasive ventilation pathway bundle 
– increased level of care within the 
patient home

•  New clinic for patients with epilepsy 
had enlisted the support of patients to 
develop service

Key areas for improvement included; 

•  Access to outpatient services

•  Staff receiving mandatory training

•  Waiting times and monitoring patients 
on the waiting list

Professor Sir Mike Richards, Chief Inspector 
of Hospitals stated;

“The trust was placed into special 
measures in October 2014. Due to the 
improvements seen at this inspection, I 
have recommended to NHS Improvement 
that the special measures are lifted.”
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2c Herefordshire and Worcestershire Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan

What is a Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP)?

STPs are about finding the best way to plan 
and deliver health and social care services 
to meet the needs of local people. They 
aim to ensure that services are delivered 
in the best possible way for those who 
use them, including in patients’ homes 
where appropriate, rather than relying on 
traditional hospital-led care. 

The Vision

The vision that the Herefordshire STP seeks 
to deliver is: “Local people will live well in 
a supportive community with joined up 
care underpinned by specialist expertise 
and delivered in the best place by the most 
appropriate people”

What geographical area does the STP 
cover?

The Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
STP covers a population of 780,000 
people. This includes more than 40,000 
people who live in mid-Powys who use 
Herefordshire hospitals. 

What are the financial challenges 
facing services?

The way we currently deliver services is 
not affordable in the long-term, given that 
the demand for them is continuing to rise 
against tighter budgets. 

If we do nothing to change how 
services are delivered and carry on as 
we are, by 2020/21, the funding gap 
for health services in Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire is projected to be £229.6 
million. Including social care budgets, this 
total funding gap equals £336 million.

Key areas included in the STP

This is a summary of some of the key 
areas included in the draft STP. For the full 
STP document visit www.hacw.nhs.uk/
yourconversation.

•  People taking more responsibility for 
their health – reduce smoking, obesity, 
poor diet 

•  Investing more in mental health services 

•  Better cancer screening 

•  Treating more people proactively at 
home (reducing unplanned hospital 
activity by focusing more on prevention)

•  Investing more money into out-of-
hospital care for:

■■ People with complex long term 
conditions

■■ Frail, older people

•  More investment in primary care services

■■ ■7 day access / same day access and 
longer appointments

2d One Herefordshire 

The organisations responsible for health 
and social care services in Herefordshire 
(WVT, Herefordshire CCG, Herefordshire 
Council, 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
and Taurus Ltd) have committed to work 
together through a programme called “One 
Herefordshire” in order to: 

•  Prioritise safety, prevent ill health and 
promote self-help, for example people 
looking after themselves to stay as 
healthy as possible or looking after 
themselves when ill before it becomes an 
emergency

•  Recognise that our county has strong 
communities 

•  Work to reduce waste in our system and 
ensure that all our resources are used in 
the most effective way possible
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2e Herefordshire Integrated Care Alliance 

A drive to integrate health and care 
services that are currently delivered by 
different organisations in Herefordshire is 
underway as part of the One Herefordshire 
transformation programme.

The integration will build on the role 
of existing neighbourhood teams, by 
including primary, community and social 
care, alongside services provided by the 
voluntary sector, under the leadership of 
primary care (GPs).

It means that, ultimately, a multi-skilled 
team will provide a one-stop shop of 
services for people who need support, 
ensuring that they can be proactively 
looked after in their homes or in a 
community setting.

•  Primary care services are usually GP 
led and include pharmacy and practice 
nursing

•  Community Services provide support for 
people with long-term conditions, for 
example Multiple Sclerosis, dementia, 
mental health, as well as services such as 
stroke rehabilitation

•  The voluntary sector provides a falls 
prevention service and many other 
support services

Currently, these services are delivered by 
a number of organisations including GPs, 
community hospitals (WVT NHS), 2gether 
NHS FT and the voluntary sector.

Under the plans, patients and service users 
would be able to get the services they need 
via one access point, whoever the provider, 
and need only one assessment, resulting 
in a single support or care plan. The new 
teams would be able to provide proactive 
care – for example supporting long-term 
conditions, as well as responsive care, for 
example bedded or hospital care at home.

Another major benefit of creating a GP 
‘wrap around’ service has already been 
realised in South Warwickshire, where a 
similar scheme has led to a reduction in the 
number of people attending the Emergency 
Department and requiring urgent care. This 
means that crucial national targets, such as 
the 4 hour wait in Emergency Department 
and also 18 Week Referral to Treatment, are 
kept on track. 

The changes will be subject to a 
consultation, led by Herefordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

2f Quality Improvement 
Programme (QIP)

The QIP superseded the Patient Care 
Improvement Plan (PCIP) and was 
developed to support the Trust in moving 
out of special measures. 

It focused on a number of system-wide  
improvements to ensure that the 
recommendations made by the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) in their 2016 
inspection were addressed and to ensure 
that the Trust can deliver safe and effective 
healthcare as part of business as usual.

The themes included in the QIP were;

• Improving quality governance 

• Reducing harm 

• Organisational development 

• Estates

• Patient experience 

• Safeguarding vulnerable people 

• Urgent care 

• Stroke 

• Clinical effectiveness 

• Risk management 

• Information governance

It has been agreed that the QIP programme 
becomes business as usual.
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2g Commissioning for 
Innovations and Quality 
(CQUIN)

The CQUIN scheme is intended to deliver 
clinical quality improvement and drive 
transitional change.

Seven indicators have been defined which 
aim to improve quality and outcomes 
for patients including reducing health 
inequalities, encouraging collaboration 
across different providers and improving 
the working loves of NHS staff.

National

•  Introduction of Health and Wellbeing 
initiatives

•  Timely identification and treatment for 
sepsis in emergency departments and 
acute patient setting 

•  Antimicrobial Resistance and Stewardship 

Local

•  Mental Capacity Act/Best Interest 
Decision Making/Do Not Attempt 
Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation

•  Admission of patients to community 
hospitals 

•  Planned care – reducing follow-up 
appointments in outpatients and those 
that have had hospital episodes

•  Appropriate care and management for 
frequent attenders to WVT ED in order 
to improve patient care and reduce 
admission and length of stay at WVT 

2h Patient and Public Involvement 
 

Inpatient survey results

The 2016 national survey of patients who 
have stayed one night or more in hospital, 
showed an increase in satisfaction in the 
Trust’s services and facilities. 

1,250 patients, who received treatment in 
the Trust in 2015, responded to a range of 
questions. Feedback showed patients were 
pleased with the answers they received 
from doctors, and more felt that there were 
enough nurses on duty to care for them 
– an improvement on the previous year’s 
results.

The survey also showed improved ratings 
for:

• The amount of time patients spent 
waiting for a bed after being admitted 

• How long they waited to be discharged

• A reduction in the level of noise 
disruption at night

• Improved privacy and dignity experienced 
on single-sex wards

The Trust was disappointed with the 
feedback from patients who visited the 
Emergency Department, which stated that 
they want more information about their 
condition and treatment and felt they were 
not given enough privacy.

Six new bays were opened in the 
Emergency Department in January 2016 
and we hope that the next set of inpatient 
survey results reflects this improvement to 
facilities.

Charitable funds

Wye Valley Hospitals Charity supports staff, 
patients, families and carers at hospitals 
and within the local community. The focus 
is on raising money where it is needed most 
in areas not covered or fully supported by 
NHS funding. 

The principle function of the charity’s team 
is to ensure that donations are processed, 
acknowledged and spent in their intended 
areas. 

Overseeing the 35 funds, the Charity 
received donations and transactions of 
£171k in the last financial year. These 
donations were in addition to those 
highlighted below: 

A £200,000 donation from the trustees 
of the Geoffrey Lewis Fund in memory 
of the late Geoffrey Lewis means that 
Ophthalmology patients now benefit 
from the latest technology for sight 
saving treatment following the opening 
of a mobile eye unit to the 36,000 patient 
assessments, procedures and treatments 
that take place at the Victoria Eye Unit.

Purchase of a £28,000 Stepper Unit thanks 
to local grant making trust ROBOCAP and 
specific donations to the Urology charitable 
funds means the Trust’s Urology team 
can now provide a Transperineal Template 
Biopsy Service allowing a greater number of 
tissue samples to be obtained from various 
parts of the prostate, improving detection 
of small cancers compared with other 
biopsy methods.

Thanks to local charity Rocky-Lee’s Little 
Feet and other specific donations, the 
Maternity Department’s Bereavement 
Service has received a significant boost to 
the facilities and service available to parents 
delivering stillborn babies. The charity 
has pledged £15,000 to provide suitable 
facilities for patients to receive counselling 
and give birth in a less clinical environment. 

Plans for 2017-18 include the purchase of 
a Fibroscan liver scanner with donations 
already pledged. 
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PLACE Results

Inspections this year took place at Hereford 
County Hospital, Bromyard, Ross and 
Leominster Community Hospitals, and 
Hillside Centre in Hereford.

The results show that the Trust scored 74% 
for food served to patients in hospital. A 
score of 87% was given for cleanliness, 
71% for the environment and 86% for 
patient privacy and dignity. The Trust also 
scored 72% for the dementia assessment.

Feedback from the PLACE inspections help 
ensure patients are cared for to the highest 
possible standards.

Young Ambassadors

Our Young Ambassadors are a group of 
young people aged 12-17 who have all 
had some kind of hospital experience. The 
scheme, established in 2014, launched 
the Voice of the Child project and looked 
at how we run our services listening to 
the views of these young people. The 
voice of the child ambassadors have had 
another successful year influencing positive 
changes within the Trust and outside the 
organisation. The ambassadors are highly 
recognised by the CQC getting mentioned 
in the CQC report as outstanding. 

They attended a shared learning event 
at the West Midlands Safari Park about 
transition. They were the only young 
people who attended the whole event and 
stood up and asked in front of a room of 
health care professionals ‘Where are all the 
young people?’. Their thoughts and views 
around transition were also shared through 
a PowerPoint slide show.

During the year they have also been 
involved in interviews and sat in the 
interviews for the new lead nurse for 
paediatrics, giving their feedback after 
meeting all the candidates, ultimately 
helping make the decision of who was 
appointed.

They have also filmed a short five minute 
video about their views around transition. 
NHS England helped to fund this project 
and the film was produced with the help of 
the charity fixers. The film was launched on 
the 20th March.

Again this year the ambassadors took part 
in the Children’s Commissioner Takeover 
Challenge where five of the ambassadors 
shadowed health care professionals and 
decision makers in the trust. 

Future Plans

The group consists of 16 members aged 
12-17. They are planning to recruit more 
members for their group as well as to help 
establish a similar group for children 11 
years and under. 

The Voice of the Child ambassadors have 
recently been working with Helen Byard 
(Deputy Director of Nursing) around 
patient experience, currently looking at the 
signage in the hospital and how it could be 
improved.

2i Estates Strategy

The Trust has refocussed the Estates 
Strategy and is now concentrating on the 
replacement of the huts at the County 
Hospital. The Trust is now working with 
public sector partners as part of the STP 
and ‘One Public Estate’ initiative to identify 
options to relocate more staff to enable 
some of the huts to be demolished to make 
way for new wards. Whilst a business case 
is yet to be agreed with NHS Improvement 
we continue to receive support from them 
and are planning to submit a funding 
application in 2017/18 for works to start in 
earnest. 

Site Name Site Type Cleanliness Food

Privacy, 
dignity and 
wellbeing

Condition, 
appearance 
and 
maintenance

Dementia 
friendly

Disability 
friendly

Leominster Community 
Hospital

Community 90.51 95.47 88.31 85.91 73.48 75.50

Bromyard Community 
Hospital

Acute/ 
specialist

87.55 95.47 83.33 86.73 73.23 86.26

Ross Community Hospital
Acute/ 
specialist

87.41 79.61 82.72 87.09 86.43 86.93

Hillside centre for 
intermediate care

Community 99.23 91.61 79.69 93.95 92.70 87.35

County Hospital
Acute/ 
specialist

94.95 86.46 71.44 85.81 67.44 68.27

National average 98.06 88.24 84.16 93.37 75.28 78.84 -

Wye Valley Trust overall 
score

93.84 87.33 74.63 86.43 71.11 72.39 -

Patient Led Assessment of the Care Environment (PLACE)
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2j Service Developments 
 

Red2Green

Red2Green is a system introduced to 
focus on the value of patients’ time when 
they are in hospital. It was introduced on 
Monnow and Frome wards in December 
2016 and aims to reduce internal and 
external delays as part of the SAFER patient 
flow bundle.

A green day adds value to the patient 
journey through the hospital moving them 
towards discharge. A red day is a wasted 
day, which adds limited or no value to the 
patient’s stay. 

Examples of a green day include everything 
planned or requested is carried out and 
acted upon, the patient receives care that 
can only be received in an acute hospital 
bed. Examples of a red day include a 
planned investigation, clinical assessment, 
procedure or therapy intervention that does 
not take place, the medical care plan lacks 
criteria for discharge and/or a consultant 
approved expected discharge date. 

Hi-tech remote patient health 
monitoring scheme 

The patient health monitoring scheme 
is a pilot to help patients proactively 
manage long-term conditions from home. 
Patients can connect with community 
health professionals via a small unit, which 
uses the mobile telephone network to 
send information once a day. The scheme 
aims to reduce the number of unplanned 
hospital admissions and the demand on 
unscheduled care.

New medical education suite

A new £190k simulation suite opened at 
the County Hospital in 2016. The patient 
simulators train doctors in core skills to 
diagnose and treat patients effectively 
and to improve patient safety. Doctors can 
train in simulated real-life clinical scenarios, 
such as a cardiac arrest, to enhance their 
knowledge, experience, and skills, before 
going out onto the hospital wards. The 
new facility will see around 100 junior 
doctors and medical students per year and 
was funded through the student medical 
training fund in collaboration with the Post 
Graduate Medical Centre Charity.

Dementia care champions

A Trust-wide dementia strategy has 
been introduced with a number of new 
measures, which met with CQC approval.

More than 30 dementia champions are 
working in wards across the Trust.

In consultation with carers and families, 
patients with a dementia history are 
identified on wards by a forget-me-not 
flower symbol on their medical boards. 
Staff work closely with dementia patients 
and their families to make sure that 
additional support and care is available to 
meet their needs.

A Dementia Matters group has been set 
up to enhance the care given to dementia 
patients. As part of this, regular in-
house dementia focus sessions are being 
introduced and offered to current and new 
champions.

The Geoffrey Lewis Retinal Treatment 
Unit

The £200k mobile eye unit, funded by the 
Geoffrey Lewis fund, opened in 2016.

Vanguard temporary theatre

Opened on 29 March 2016 the unit is 
used for general surgery and increases 
orthopaedic capacity. The theatre is linked 
by a corridor to the Emergency Department 
and includes a state-of-the-art air filtration 
system to ensure infection risk is minimised, 
an anaesthetic room and a two-bed 
recovery area.

2k INFORM – Improving 
Digital and Electronic 
Records and Systems

Work is underway to improve IT systems 
and to launch a new Electronic Patient 
Record system across the Trust in 2017/18.  

2017 plans include:

• Replacing the current Patient 
Administration Systems for Community, 
the Acute Hospital and Theatres with a 
single system

• Capability to electronically request 
pathology tests for patients and view 
their results in their electronic record.

• Bed management and patient tracker 
functionality

The introduction of an Electronic Patient 
Record will facilitate better care for patients 
with records accessed and updated readily 
by clinicians and reduce reliance on paper-
based records – currently, 2,000 paper 
records are moved around the Trust every 
day.

2l Intranet Redesign Project

The intranet holds information on a variety 
of subjects ranging from HR procedures to 
the correct use of medication. 

It holds background information to key 
programmes and initiatives of the Trust 
and was used extensively during our CQC 
inspections. 

However, some of the information it holds 
dates back to pre-WVT days and although 
much is updated regularly, its organic 
growth due to a plethora of contributors 
means it has become difficult to navigate 
and unwieldy. 

The intranet is listed on the Trust’s Risk 
Register. The new intranet is planned to be 
launched summer 2017.

2m Patient Safety

Our Quality Account 2016-17, available 
from the Director of Nursing, Lucy 
Flanagan, contains comprehensive 
information on quality and safety.
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3a Acute Hospital 

Planned care has grown significantly during 2016/17 when compared to 2015/16

• 1017 additional patients treated as in-patients or day cases

• 3250 additional patients having a first outpatient appointment

Unplanned care, in terms of attendances to the Emergency Department and resulting 
emergency admissions remained at the same levels as 2015/16

Activity 2015/16 2016-17
Increase/Decrease 
2016/17 on 2015/16

Elective spells 3,895 4,404 13.1%

Day case spells 16,625 17,733 6.7%

Emergency spells 22,056 21,977 -0.4%

New outpatient attendances 71,415 74,665 4.6%

Follow-up outpatient 
attendances

166,233 167,326 0.7%

Emergency Department 
attendances

53,973 53,984 0.0%

3b Community Activity

Planned care has reduced during 2016/17 when compared to 2015/16 with fewer 
patients having an outpatient appointment this year. The overall Trust positon (Acute and 
Community combined) still sees an overall growth in planned care activity

Unplanned care has grown in the year with growth across all other areas of activity

Activity 2015/16 2016-17
Increase/Decrease 
2016/17 on 2015/16

Day case spells 996 1,064 6.8%

Community bed days 32,506 33,595 3.4%

Contacts 242,710 266,607 9.8%

New outpatient attendances 15,062 14,083 -6.5%

Follow up outpatient 
attendances

49,375 47,920 -2.9%

Minor Injury Unit attendances 4,072 4,515 10.9%

3 Performance tables
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3c Key Targets 

Emergency department

The Trust did not meet the national standard of 95% of patients being seen, admitted or 
discharged within four hours from time of arrival. Continued pressure from emergency 
attendances to the Emergency Department and resulting admissions to inpatient beds has 
resulted in increased pressure on the urgent care system. A number of initiatives started in 
2016-2017 will continue through 2017-2018 to reduce the pressures within the system.

18 week wait, referral to treatment (RTT)

The Trust has not been able to formally report RTT performance until January 2017 (for 
December 2016 performance) due to historic data quality issues with the Trust’s electronic 
systems. Performance against the incomplete RTT standard is higher than the 18 Week 
Wait required standard due to both clinical and inpatient capacity pressures. The Trust has 
worked with commissioners, primary care and clinical teams to address these issues.

Key target – 18 weeks referral 
to treatment and ED 4 hour 
wait or less 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

18 week referral to treatment – 
admitted patients*

92.7% 78.3% 62.8% 54.8%

18 week referral to treatment – 
non admitted patients**

99.7% 97.9% Unavailable 82.2%***

Total time in ED: 4 hours or 
less****

92.3% 85.6% 88.7% 86.9%

* The key target for 18 week referral to treatment for admitted is 90% within 18 weeks 

** The key target for 18 week referral to treatment for non-admitted is 95% within 18 weeks 

*** Figure based on December to March

**** The key target for ED is that 95% of ED patients are seen, treated and discharged within four hours  
from arrival.

Cancer two week waits

A rise in cancer referrals for the year of 12.1% has placed pressure on clinical capacity and 
the Trust has not been able to sustainably deliver all of the cancer targets across the year. 
Improvementds in access have been made and performance has improved across a number 
of targets in the year.

Key performance indicators Key target 2016-17 Actual 2016-17

Cancer two week waits* 93% 90.4%

Two week waits (breast symptomatic) 93% 66.8%

Cancer 31 days 96% 98.8%

Cancer 31 days subsequent treatments 98% 93%

Cancer 62 days 85% 80.6%

Cancer 62 days screening 90% 97.2%

Cancer 62 days upgrades (no national 
target set)

– 90.3%

Cancer 31 days rare cancers 85% 75%

3d Mortality reporting and 
governance

Governance and Review

Regular review of mortality is undertaken 
as follows:

Specific index cases where one might not 
ordinarily expect mortality are investigated, 
lessons learned and action taken – 
particularly significant cases are presented 
to the Clinical Quality Committee for 
further scrutiny. Serious conditions with 
associated high mortality are maintained 
under regular audit eg stroke, fractured 
neck of femur. Individual deaths from the 
pool of general emergency admissions, 
largely older frail adults, are regularly 
audited by a process of structured case 
review (amounting in total to over 50% of 
deaths occurring in hospital) and practice 
is informed at review meetings. This entire 
process is supervised and coordinated 
by a Hospital Reducing Mortality Group, 
chaired by the Deputy Medical Director 
which reports to the Safety and Quality 
Committee. This group is multidisciplinary 
in nature and has wide representation. 
This group also reviews conditions which 
have raised mortality indicators to identify 
factors which might be addressed to 
improve care and reduce avoidable 
mortality.

Further development of this oversight 
system with enhanced reporting at Board 
level is planned as part of our compliance 
with recent guidance “National Learning 
from Deaths”. This will also see the use 
of Structured Judgement Reporting as a 
standard means of assessing case records. 
Closer working with the coroner and 
medical referees, and a greater involvement 
of and support for bereaved families is 
planned.
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4a  Statutory Basis

The Trust has fulfilled its responsibilities under the National Health Services Act 2006 for the 
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Manual for Accounts and the 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

4b  Financial Break Even

In 2016-17, the Trust delivered a deficit of £37.172m which was in line with the forecast 
position submitted to NHS Improvement. The table below shows the overall value of the 
deficit once factors relating to the change in value of tangible assets and other technical 
adjustments are accounted for.

I&E: retained (deficit)/surplus 2016-17 2015-16

Income and expenditure: retained (deficit)/surplus (37,172) (19,540)

IFRIC 12 adjustment 0 0

Impairment of assets (54) (462)

Net adjustments for donated asset additions/ 
(depreciation)

22 (454)

Absorption accounting adjustment 0 0

Adjusted retained surplus (37,204) (20,456)

4c Trust Break Even Duty

The Trust break even duty is calculated based on the retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 
adjusted for asset impairments and revaluations, the impact of donated assets and gains/
losses from absorption accounting. It also takes account of the impact of IFRIC 12 which 
requires the Trust to account for PFI assets on the balance sheet.

The adjusted retained surplus/(deficit) was £37.204m – this is the second year that the Trust 
has failed to deliver the break even duty and now has a cumulative break even position of 
£52.798m. 

4 Key financial information
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4d Resources

The Trust generated income of £177.567m during 2016/17. The pie chart (Fig 1) identifies 
income received from different sources for health related activity. The largest share of 
income is derived from the Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).

The second pie chart (Fig 2) identifies annual expenditure during the year. Salaries and 
wages paid to permanent and temporary staff, including those employed through agencies, 
totalled £133.582m. Expenditure on goods and services amounted to £74.641m and finance 
costs (interest payable) totalled £6.424m. 

Trust staffing costs increased materially when compared with 2015/16, due primarily to the 
high volumes of agency doctors and nurses that the Trust needed to employ in order to deal 
with the significant numbers of vacancies it was having to operate with.

Foundation Trusts – £3.8m

NHS Other – £1.8m

Local Authorities – £3.6m

Private patients and cost recovery – £0.7m

Education, Training and research – £4.8m 

Donations for capital acquisitions – £0.3m

Income generation – £1.3m

Other revenue – £4.8m

NHS England – £10.1m

Clinical 
Commissioning 

Groups
£128.6m

Welsh  
NHS bodies

£17.8m

 Fig 2.  2016/17 Annual Expenditure (£m)

 Fig 1. 2016/17 Income Sources (£m)

Establishment – £5.3m

Transport – £1.9m

PFI Service Costs – £8.3m

Premises – £4.9m

Insurance – £2.8m

Depreciation – £4m

Education and Training – £0.4m

Interest payable – £6.4m 

NHS bodies – £1.5m

Other – £4.2m

Staff
£133.6m

Supplies 
and 

Services
£23.9m

Drugs
£17.6m
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4e Cost Improvement Programme Delivery and Capital 
Development

The Trust’s Cost Improvement Programme (CIP) delivered savings totalling £4.5m during 
the course of 2016/17. The CIP comprised a number of separate projects relating to 
procurement gains, increased productivity, income generation and pay efficiencies.

In addition to the formal CIP, the Trust launched a campaign to get all staff involved in 
making savings. ‘Wye not, Waste not’ generated a significant number of initiatives which 
have been implemented and which have contributed to the Trust’s final position.

Capital Development

The Trust spent £6.191m on capital investments during 2016/17. This table provides a 
summary of that expenditure. The most significant element within the capital programme 
(£3.877m) was in relation to phase 1 of the Electronic Patient Record which is being 
implemented in the summer of 2017. The table includes £367k spent on backlog 
maintenance (part of construction schemes).

Expenditure type Purchased
Charitable 

funding Total £000s

Medical equipment 819 333 1,152

IT development 144 144

Construction schemes 820 820

Estates Strategy 198 198

Electronic Patient record 3,877 3,877

Total 5,858 333 6,191

WY£ NOT WAST£ NOT

WY£ NOT WAST£ NOT is a scheme which was devised to give staff an opportunity to 
contribute cost saving ideas to help the Trust’s financial position.

There are two mechanisms by which suggestions can be put forward, either directly by 
email or anoymously via the Rumour Mill page on the Trust’s intranet.

The scheme launched on 3 January 2017, and so far we have received 110 suggestions.

The receipt of all suggestions is acknowledged, and the individual suggestions are collated 
in to themes, which can then be sent to relevant experts and decision makers. So far, 80% 
of suggestions have been forwarded for consideration. The most common themes are 
Energy (21) Medicines (14) Operational issues (9) Diagnostics (5).

Feedback on suggestions is returned to the originator (where known) and either posted on 
Rumour Mill or publicised in Trust Talk.

An Energy Supplies Working Group has been established and a new supplies catalogue 
management system is being installed.

4f Pension Liabilities 

Within the annual accounts, ongoing 
employer pension contribution costs are 
included within employee costs (see note 
10 of the full accounts for more detail).

Past and present employees are covered by 
the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. 
Details of the benefits payable under 
these provisions can be found on the NHS 
Pensions website. 

4g Going Concern

International Accounting Standard 1 
requires management to assess, as part 
of the accounts preparation process, 
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. In the context of non-trading 
entities in the public sector, the anticipated 
continuation of the provision of a service 
in the future is normally sufficient 
evidence of going concern. The financial 
statements should be prepared on a going 
concern basis unless there are plans for, 
or no realistic alternative other than, the 
dissolution of the Trust without the transfer 
of its services to another entity.

In view of the fact that the Trust delivered a 
deficit of £37.2m, and is forecasting further 
deficits in the next two financial years, 
the Directors have carefully considered 
the principle of going concern. The 
Trust has agreed contracts with its local 
commissioners for 2017/18 and services are 
being commissioned in the same manner in 
the future as in prior years and there are no 
discontinued operations. The Trust has also 
entered into the strategic partnership with 
South Warwickshire NHS Trust which will 
provide executive leadership and support 
to the Trust. They have thus concluded that 
the Trust remains a going concern and the 
going concern basis has been adopted for 
the preparation of the accounts.
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4h Better Payment Practice Code

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by 
the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later. The Trust is a 
signatory of the Government’s Prompt Payment Code.

It can be seen in the tables below that the Trust struggled to deliver the required standard 
during 2016/17. This was a direct consequence of the impact of running a significant deficit 
and having to borrow in order to maintain cashflow.

Non-NHS Payables

Better payment 
practice code 

2016-17 
(number)

2016-17 
(£000s)

2015-16 
(number)

2015-16 
(£000s)

Total Non NHS trade 
invoices paid in the 
year

69,345 131,161 50,732 95,257

Total Non NHS trade 
invoices paid within 
target

23,850 80,090 27,588 67,557

Percentage of bills 
paid within target

34.39 61.06 54.4 70.9

NHS Payables

Better payment 
practice code 

2016-17 
(number)

2016-17 
(£000s)

2015-16 
(number)

2015-16 
(£000s)

Total NHS trade 
invoices paid in the 
year

1,115 6,794 1,081 5,553

Total NHS trade 
invoices paid within 
target

255 3,205 650 3,745

Percentage of bills 
paid within target

22.87 47.17 60.1 67.4

4i Principles for Remedy

The Trust has adopted the Parliamentary 
and Health Service Ombudsman Principles 
for Remedy in full and they form part of 
the Trust’s Management of Complaints, 
Concerns, Comments and ComplIments 
Policy.

4j Fraud

The Trust employs RSM to provide a 
fraud service. This service undertakes 
investigations in addition to doing proactive 
work in relation to fraud in the NHS. There 
was one fraud referral during the year 
relating to charitable funds with no fraud 
proven.
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A Sustainability and Development Plan 
for 2016-20 has been developed in line 
with the NHS Sustainability Strategy. 
A copy of the plan can be obtained 
from Howard Oddy, Director of Finance 
and Information. The Trust has been 
constrained by the availability of capital to 
invest in opportunities in recent years but 
is expecting to bid against a new national 
fund in 2017/18 as recommended by Lord 
Carter in his efficiency review. 

As far as the Directors are aware there is 
no relevant audit information of which the 
Trust’s auditor is unaware. All steps have 
been taken by Directors in order to make 
themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the Trust’s 
auditor is aware of that information.

5 Sustainable Development

6 Statement of disclosure to 
Auditors



21

Directors’ Report

During 2016-2017, the Trust Board comprised of 11 voting Directors. In addition to this there 
were four non-voting Executive Directors and the Company Secretary in attendance.

In November a new Chairman, Russell Hardy, Chief Executive, Glen Burley, Managing 
Director, Jane Ives, and Medical Director, Charles Ashton were all appointed. These 
appointments are joint appointments between Wye Valley NHS Trust and South 
Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust. In addition to these appointments the Trust also 
appointed a substantive Director of Nursing, Lucy Flanagan and substantive Director 
of Human Resources and Organisation Development, Sue Smith. Details of the Board 
composition and its activities are included in the Annual Governance Report on page 25.

Our thanks go to Museji Takolia CBE, Chairman, Richard Beeken, Chief Executive and Dr 
Susan Gilby, Medical Director who all left Wye Valley NHS Trust during the year.

Our thanks also go to a number of temporary appointments which took place during the 
year these included Denise Price and Fiona Burton, temporary Directors of Nursing and Mike 
Seeley, Interim Director of Human Resources.

Board of Directors as at 31 March 2017

Non-Executive Directors

Russell Hardy Chairman

Appointed: November 2016 Attended: 6/6 Board Meetings

Mark Waller Deputy Chairman, Senior Independent 
Director and Chair of Finance and 
Performance Committee

Appointed: August 2011

Reappointed: August 2015

Attended: 12/14 Board Meetings

Frank Myers MBE Chairman of Charitable Funds 
Committee

Appointed: November 2011

Reappointed: April 2016

Attended: 14/14 Board Meetings

Richard Humphries Chair of Workforce and Development 
Committee

Appointed: November 2014

Reappointed: December 2016

Attended: 12/14 Board Meetings

Andrew Cottom Chair of Audit Committee

Appointed: November 2014

Reappointed: December 2016

Attended: 12/14 Board Meetings

Reverend Christobel Hargraves Chair of Clinical Quality Committee

Appointed: November 2014

Full time NED appointed: July 2015

Attended: 14/14 Board MeetingsA
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Executive Directors and Advisors

Glen Burley Chief Executive

Appointed: November 2016 Attended: 5/5 Board Meetings

Jane Ives Managing Director

Appointed: November 2016 Attended: 5/5 Board Meetings

Howard Oddy Director of Finance & Information, 
Deputy Chief Executive

Appointed: July 2007 Attended: 14/14 Board Meetings

Charles Ashton Medical Director

Appointed: December 2017 Attended: 4/4 Board Meetings

Martin Sandler Deputy Medical Director

Appointed: December 2017 Attended: 3/3 Board Meetings

Jon Barnes Chief Operating Officer

Appointed: April 2015 Attended: 12/14 Board Meetings

Lucy Flanagan Director of Nursing 

Appointed: September 2016 Attended: 8/8 Board Meetings

Sue Smith Director of Human Resources & 
Organisational Development

Appointed: October 2016 Attended: 7/7 Board Meetings

Nicola Licence Associate Director of Corporate 
Governance and Company Secretary

Appointed: May 2008 Attended: 14/14 Board Meetings

Malcolm Hunter Improvement Director

Appointed: October 2016 Attended: 5/5 Board Meetings
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Register of Board of Directors’ Interests – as at 31 March 2017

Board Member Designation Declared Interest

Charles Ashton Medical Director South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust – Medical 
Director

Solihull CCG Governing Body – Member

Jon Barnes Chief Operating Officer No personal interests

Glen Burley Chief Executive South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust – Chief Executive

Andrew Cottom Non-Executive Director Hoople Ltd – Chairman

Lucy Flanagan Director of Nursing No personal interests

Russell Hardy Chairman Nuffield Health – Chairman

Maranatha I Ltd – Chairman

South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust – Chairman

You’re Cherished – Chairman

Christobel Hargraves Non-Executive Director League of Friends, Knighton Community Hospital – Secretary

Richard Humphries Non-Executive Director No personal interests

Jane Ives Managing Director South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust – Director 
Operations

Frank Myers MBE Non-Executive Director Hereford Community Foundation – Chairman

Myers Road Safety Ltd – Joint Owner and Managing Director

MCP Systems Consultants Ltd – Joint Owner and Director

Queen Elizabeth Foundation for Disabled People – Trustee 
and Director

MERU – Director

Herefordshire and South Herefordshire Conservative 
Association

Herefordshire Business Board – Chairman

Marches Local Enterprise Partnership – Board Member

Walford Parish Council – Chairman

Howard Oddy Director of Finance and Information No personal interests

Sue Smith Director of Human Resources and 
Organisational Development

No personal interests

Mark Waller Non-Executive Director Herefordshire MIND – Chairman

Statement of Accountable 
Officers Responsibilities

See Governance Statement sections, Scope 
of Responsibility, page 24.
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Scope of Responsibility

The Governance Statement has been 
based upon the responsibilities of the 
Accountable Officer as set out in the 
Department of Health’s Accountable 
Officer Memorandum. 

As Accountable Officer and Chief Executive 
of Wye Valley NHS Trust, I have overall 
responsibility for a robust system of internal 
control, which supports the achievement 
of the organisation’s policies, aims and 
objectives whilst safeguarding public funds.

I ensure that the following functions are 
carried out to provide assurance to the 
Board on the proper stewardship of public 
money and assets:

• Comply with statutory duties

• Develop and maintain relationships with 
patients, service users, local partner 
organisations, the wider community 
and their commissioning agencies and 
suppliers

• Be accountable to the secretary of state 
and to parliament for the performance 
of these functions and meeting statutory 
financial duties

a) Statutory accounts

Together with the Director of Finance and 
Information (Deputy Chief Executive), 
I am responsible for ensuring that the 
accounts of Wye Valley NHS Trust, which 
are presented to the Board for approval, 
are prepared under the principles and 
in a format directed by the Secretary of 
State. I ensure that the accounts disclose 
a true and fair view of the Trust’s income 
and expenditure, cash flows, gains and 
losses, and of its state of affairs. I sign the 
accounts along with the Director of Finance 
and Information on behalf of the Board.

b) Effective management systems

I have ensured that the Trust has effective 
management systems in place to 
safeguard public funds. I have assisted the 
Chairman of the Board to implement the 
requirements of Corporate Governance 
as stated in the Codes of Conduct and 
Accountability. I confirm that managers at 
all levels:

• Have a clear view of their objectives 
and are assessed and held to account 
in relation to the achievement of those 
objectives

• Are clear about their responsibilities in 
relation to making best use of resources 
and held to account for doing so

• Have the information, training and access 
to the expert advice they need to exercise 
their responsibilities effectively

I ensure that recommendations made by 
our external auditors, Grant Thornton, are 
implemented where appropriate and fully 
co-operate with them regarding enquiries 
made into the Trust’s use of public funds. 
Arrangements for internal audit comply 
with those set out in the NHS Internal Audit 
Manual and action is taken in relation to 
any concerns, which are raised by either 
external or internal audit.

My review is informed by the Head of 
Internal Audit who provides an opinion 
on the overall arrangements for gaining 
assurance through the Board Assurance 
Framework and on the controls reviewed as 
part of Internal Audit programme of work.

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion for 
2016-2017 concluded that:

“The organisation has an adequate 
and effective framework for 
risk management, governance 
and internal control. However, 
our work has identified further 
enhancements to the framework of 
risk management, governance and 
internal control to ensure that it 
remains adequate and effective”

With the Director of Finance and 
Information, I have a duty to ensure that 
effective and sound financial management 
and information functions are properly 
discharged. I have endeavoured to 
ensure the financial viability of the Trust. 
Assets have been properly safeguarded 
and value for money achieved from the 
resources available by avoiding waste 
and extravagance in delivering the 
organisation’s activities.

c) Regularity and propriety of 
expenditure

I have responsibility for ensuring that all 
expenditure by the Trust complies with 
regulatory requirements and is only used 
for the purposes authorised. Appropriate 
advice is provided to the Board on all 
matters of financial probity, regularity, 
efficiency and effectiveness. The Director 
of Finance and Information supports me in 
this role. 

The Audit Committee has specific Terms of 
Reference and delegated powers to enquire 
into matters of probity and regularity.

The Codes of Conduct and Accountability 
are fundamental in exercising my 
responsibilities for regularity and probity 
and, as a Board Member of Wye Valley NHS 
Trust, I have subscribed to the Codes and 
promote their observance.

Governance Statement
2016-2017
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The Governance Framework 

(a) Strategic partnership with South 
Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust

In November 2016 Wye Valley NHS Trust 
formed a Strategic Partnership with South 
Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust. The 
Partnership means that the Chairman 
and the Chief Executive from South 
Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust are 
also the Chairman and Chief Executive 
at Wye Valley NHS Trust. In addition to 
this the Director of Operations at South 
Warwickshire Foundation Trust has been 
appointed as Managing Director to Wye 
Valley NHS Trust. There is a great deal of 
shared learning taking place between the 
two Trusts at all levels of the organisations. 
This arrangement has strengthened both 
the Board and governance framework at 
Wye Valley NHS Trust and will help ensure 
that the Trust is more sustainable both in 
terms of its financial position and quality 
governance in the future.

(b) Wye Valley NHS Board of Directors

During 2016-2017, the Board of Directors 
comprising of 11 Directors: the Chairman, 
five Non-Executive Directors and seven 
Executive Directors led the Trust. 

Four of the seven Executive Directors are 
statutory appointments, these are:

• Chief Executive

• Finance Director (Director of Finance and 
Information (Deputy Chief Executive))

• Medical Director

• Director of Nursing

The Chief Operating Officer is the fifth 
voting Executive Director and the Managing 
Director and Director of Human Resources 
are non-voting Executive Directors. The 
Board is supported and advised by the 
Company Secretary.

During the year, five committees have been 
in place to help the Board discharge its 
functions, these are:

• Audit Committee

• Remuneration and Terms of Service 
Committee (Workforce and Development 
Committee)

• Safety and Quality Committee

• Finance & Performance Committee until 
January 2017

• Charitable Funds Committee

Moving forward into 2017/18 a new 
Governance Structure has been agreed. 
This removes the Finance and Performance 
Committee from operating as a Board 
Committee but it does continue as an 
Executive Committee reporting to the Trust 
Management Board.

The Board of Directors met formally on 
14 occasions during the financial year and 
achieved an overall attendance rate of 
93%. The Board has a work plan in place 
which is developed around the Trust’s 
Strategic Objectives. 

Board discussions have focused upon our 
seven strategic objectives:

Strategic Objective 1 – Improve the 
quality and safety of care to our patients, 
their carer’s and families

• Patients stories on Dermatology, 
Leominster Community Hospital,

• Quality Improvement Programme Update 
Report – April to November

• CQC Inspection Update – June

• CQC Inspection – July

• CQC Action Plan and QIP Priorities – 
December, April 2017

• Improving Urgent Care for Older People 
– April

• Infection Prevention and Control Annual 
Report – August

• Child Safeguarding Annual Report – 
December

• Adult Safeguarding Annual Report – 
September

• Quality Accounts – June 

• Claims Annual Report – April 2017

Strategic Objective 2 – Improve the 
responsiveness of our services for the 
benefit of our patients and their families 

• Performance and Progress Summary 
reports on Quality, Finance, Activity and 
Workforce April to March

• Clinical Services Strategy – August

• NHS England Core Standards for 
Emergency Preparedness – September

• Community Services Redesign – February 

Strategic Objective 3 – Provide more 
productive and better value care that 
improves the sustainability of our services

• Draft Operational Delivery Plan 16/17 
April, May

• Operational Delivery Plan 16/17 – 
approval August

• Draft Two Year Operational Plan – 
November

• Financial Plan 16/17 – approval April

• Uncommitted Single Currency Interim 
Revenue Support – approval December

• NHSI Loan approval – October

• Refer To Treatment Investment – June, 
October, November, December

• Financial Recovery Plan – July, August, 
September, October, November

• Business Planning 2016/17 – October, 
November

• Draft CIP 2017/18 – March 

• Financial Plan 2017/18 – April 2017

Strategic Objective 4 – Develop a highly 
skilled, motivated, healthy and engaged 
workforce

• Nurse Staffing Report – April, May, June

• Six Month Nurse Staffing Review – 
August

• Junior Doctors Dispute – May, July

• Revalidation Annual Report and 
Statement of Compliance – July

• EU Nurse Recruitment – March

• Security Management Director – April 
2017

• Freedom to Speak Up – April 2017
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Strategic Objective 5 – Develop first class 
facilities and technology to support the 
care we provide

• Electronic Patient Record update – April 
– March

• Estates Strategy – June

• Information Technology Contract – 
approval December

• Estates Strategic Outline Case Phase I – 
February

Strategic Objective 6 – Transform health 
and wellbeing through working with our 
partners

• Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
April, June, July, December, 

• One Herefordshire Transformation 
Programme – Acute Care Workstream 
– July

• Planning Priorities 2017-19 – May

• Memorandum of Understanding – 
Shadow Alliance Agreement – May, June,

• South Warwickshire NHS Foundation 
Trust discussion – August

• Memorandum of Understanding and 
Agreement for Services with South 
Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust – 
approval November

• Virtual Network Update – March

Strategic Objective 7 – Play our role as 
an important asset to the people of 
Herefordshire and the surrounding areas

• Organisation Sustainability Plan 
November

In addition Board of Director discussions 
covered Governance:

• Chief Executive’s Report – April to March

• Board Assurance Framework – March to 
November (monthly), then December to 
end of Year (quarterly)

• Draft Annual Report and Annual 
Governance Statement – April 

• Annual Report and Accounts – approval 
– May

• Well Led Framework Self Assessment – 
May, April 2017

• Standing Orders, Reservation and 
Delegation of Powers and Standing 
Financial Instructions – approval April

• Risk Appetite – approval April

• Use of Trust Seal – Alton Health Centre 
April

• Committee Summary Report – Finance 
and Performance Committee April, 
May, July, August, Sept, Oct, Nov 
Quality Committee May, July, August, 
September, October, November Audit 
Committee, May, July, September 
Charitable Funds July, December

• Committee Minutes – Safety and Quality 
Committee November, Finance and 
Performance Committee November, 
Charitable Funds Committee December

• Appointment of Director of Nursing 
and Director of Human Resources and 
Organisation Development – July

• Fit and Proper Persons Test – July

• Terms of Reference Approval – Trust 
Management Board August

• Audit Findings report – May

• Annual Reports – Audit Committee, 
Workforce and Development Committee 
May

• Board Effectiveness Review results – 
October

• Board and Committee Dates 2017 – 
approval November

• Review of Governance Structure – 
December

• Health and Safety Annual Report – 
February

• Information Governance Breach – 
February

• Annual Plan 2017/18 – March

• Risk and Board Assurance Framework 
Strategy 2017 – April 2017

• Committee Terms of Reference and Work 
Plans 2017/18 – April 2017

c) The Board’s Performance

Board Effectiveness Review

The Board undertook a review of its 
effectiveness in August 2016 and the 
results of this review were presented to the 
Trust Board of Directors in November 2016. 
A further review will be undertaken in May 
2017 as a mid-year review.

Advancing Quality Alliance (AQuA) – 
Board Development Programme

The Board of Directors attended a Board 
Development Programme in September 
2016. The programme was run by AQuA 
who are an NHS health and care quality 
improvement organisation at the forefront 
of transforming the safety and quality of 
healthcare. 

The aims of the two day programme were 
to:

• Understand the Boards role in leadership 
for quality and safety

• Consider how Boards can best adopt 
the measurement and Monitoring 
Framework for Safety

• Support the Board in developing its own 
action plan for improvement.

Board Away Day

The Board of Directors held an Away 
Day on 3 October which was externally 
facilitated. The Away Day covered the 
following areas of discussion:

• Accountability

• Visibility

• Communication

• Use of time

• Taking decisions

• Supporting the full Board

• One Herefordshire
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d) Committees of the Board

The Audit Committee and Remuneration 
and Terms of Service Committee are 
statutory Committees of the Board of 
Directors.

The Audit Committee is a Non-Executive 
Director Committee which met on five 
occasions during the year and achieved an 
attendance rate of 93%. The Chairman of 
the Board of Directors is not a member of 
the Audit Committee although may attend 
on the invitation of the Committee Chair. 
Executive Directors are invited to attend the 
Audit Committee when there are relevant 
items on the agenda. The Committee is 
supported by the Company Secretary. The 
Trust’s Internal and External Auditors are 
also invited to attend the Audit Committee 
meetings. The Committee approved a work 
plan for the financial year 2016-2017, which 
covered the following key areas:

Governance and Risk

• Amendments to Accounting Policies – 
May

• Annual Accounts and Financial 
Statements – May 

• Annual Report and Annual Governance 
Statement 2015/16 – May, Draft Annual 
Governance Statement 2016/17 – March

• Audit Committee Annual Report – May

• Quality Account Revised Timetable – May, 
Quality Account 2015/16 June, Quality 
Account Timetable 2016/17 – March 

• Department of Health Loans – Additional 
Terms and Conditions – May

• Review of Register of Conflicts of Interest 
– June

• Risk Management and Board Assurance 
Framework – June, Risk Management 
and Board Assurance Framework 
Strategy – March.

• Risk Management and Board Assurance 
Framework Review – September

• Clinical Audit Programme 2016/17 – June

• Committee Effectiveness Review – June, 
Action Plan and Results – September

• CQC Compliance Report – June

• Losses and Special Payments – Quarter 
4 – June, Quarter 1 – September

• Coding – June

• Accounting Policies for production of 
final accounts – January

• Audit Committee Chair visit to South 
Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust 
Audit Committee – March

• Well Led Assessment – March

• Audit Committee Annual Review of 
Terms of Reference – March

• Audit Committee Work Plan – March

Internal Audit

• Annual Report and Head of Internal 
Audit Opinion – May

• Internal Audit Reviews – Electronic 
Patient Record Programme Review, Data 
Quality, Information Governance Follow 
Up – May

• Internal Audit Plan – June, Internal Audit 
Plan and Strategy 2017/18 – March

• Internal Audit Progress Report and 
Technical Update – June, September, 
March

• Agency Staffing – Compliance with 
Agency Cap – September

• World Health Organisation (WHO) Safer 
Surgery Checklist – September

• Recruitment and Retention – September

• Financial Management – September

• Serious Incident Deep Dive – September

• Recommendation Tracker – September, 
January, March

• Cash Management Internal Audit – 
March

• Risk Maturity Internal Audit Review – 
March

• Draft Head of Internal Audit Opinion – 
March

External Audit

• Audit Findings Report 2015/16 – May

• External Audit Fees Letter 2016/17 – May 

• Annual Audit Letter 2015/16 – 
September

• External Audit Plan 2016/17 – March 

• Progress Report – March

Counter Fraud

• Counter Fraud Annual Report 2015/16 
– May

• Employment Checks Review – May 

• Progress Report – June, March

• Local Anti-Fraud Service – September

The Remuneration and Terms of 
Service Committee (Workforce and 
Development Committee) is a Non-
Executive Director Committee, which met 
on five occasions during the financial year 
and achieved an attendance rate of 87%.
The Chief Executive and Director of Human 
Resources and Organisation Development 
are invited to attend. The Committee is 
supported by the Company Secretary. 

The Committee approved a work plan for 
2016-2017, which covered the following 
key areas:

Appointment and Salary Reviews

• Annual Review of Terms of Services and 
Review of Benchmarked data for Chief 
Executive and Executive Directors – June

• Terms of Appointment for Director of 
Nursing – June

• Salary comparison and inflationary 
increase for Executive Directors – 
September

• Terms of Appointment for Director of 
Human Resources – September

• Management arrangements for Chief 
Executive and Managing Director – 
December

• Secondment Agreement for Salary 
Reviews – December

Objectives

• Annual Performance Review of Executive 
Directors – June

Governance

• Recruitment and Retention Strategy and 
Future work programme – June

• Effectiveness Review of the Workforce 
and Development Committee – 
September

• People Strategy and Workforce Metrics – 
September

• Annual Review of Terms of Reference – 
March 

• Work Plan – March 

• Annual Report 2016/17 – March 
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The Safety and Quality Committee 
comprises Non-Executive, Executive 
Directors and other staff within its 
membership. It met on 11 occasions 
during the financial year and achieved an 
attendance rate of 69%. The Committee is 
supported by the Company Secretary.

During the year, the Committee also 
approved a work plan for 2016-2017, which 
covered the following key areas:

Monthly Reports

• Serious Incident – April, May

• Quality Improvement Programme – April, 
May, June, July, September,

• Quality and Safety Overview –April to 
March

• Nurse Staffing – April to March

• Mortality – April, May

Quarterly Reports

• Patient Safety – April

• Clinical Effectiveness and Audit – April

• Infection Prevention and Control Quarter 
4 – May

• Patient Experience – May, January

• Falls – June, December

• Health and Safety – July

• Quality Improvement Plan and CQC 
Action Plan update – March

Six monthly Report

• Maternity Services – May, July, January

• Review of Nurse Staffing – March

Annual Reports

• Safeguarding Children – May

• Infection Prevention Control – July

• Adult Safeguarding – August

• Medicines Optimisation – November

• Hospital Thrombosis Committee – 
November

• Health and Safety – December

• Complaints – December

• Clinical Effectiveness and Audit – 
December

• Claims – February

Governance and Risk

• Mortality Outlier Reports: Fractured Neck 
of Femur April, Urinary Tract Infection 
(UTI) May

• Serious Incidents: Plastics referral process 
– April; Necrotising Fasciitis – May; 
Necrotising Fasciitis action plan and 
lessons learnt – June; Fentanyl Patch – 
June; failure to diagnose subarachnoid 
haemorrhage – July; Information 
Governance – August; Regeneration 
Kitchens – September; Medication error – 
November; Thematic Review of Pressure 
Ulcers – February; Ear, Nose and Throat 
Failure in follow up processes – March

• Pressure Ulcer Report – April

• Draft Quality Account – June

• Quality Account Timetable – November, 
December

• South Warwickshire NHS Foundation 
Trust – May

• West Midlands Quality Review Forum 
Briefing – May

• Action Plan for 18 week RTT, 4 hour 
wait and cancer waits – May, June, July, 
December

• Quality Improvement Programme 
Safeguarding Children and Adults 
Update June

• Quality Impact Assessment – July, 
September, December

• Clinical Audit Programme – July

• PLACE results – July

• PLACE approach – January

• Nurse Staffing Review – August

• Tissue Viability Report – August, 
December

• Work Plan – August

• Internal Audit – SI Deep Dive Review – 
September

• Board Assurance Framework – Quality 
Committee Work Plan 2016/17 – 
September; Risk to Credibility and 
Reputation of the Trust due to remaining 
in special measures – November; Risk to 
health safety and welfare of service users 
due to ineffective quality governance 
systems and processes – December, risk 
that published high mortality indices are 
an alert of possible poor quality care – 
January

• Pathology Review – November

• Freedom to Speak Up – November

• National End of Life Care Audit – 
November

• Midlands Critical Care – Trauma Audit 
Research Network (TARN) December

• West Midlands Service Review – Critically 
Ill Children, Transfer from acute hospital 
care – December

• Caesarean Section Audit and Actions – 
January

• Duty of Candour – retrospective review 
– January

• Infection Prevention and Control 
Priorities – March

• Never Event – February

• Diabetes in Pregnancy Audit – February

• Quality Governance Committee and 
Group Review – March

• Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2017/18 
– March 

• Clinical Quality Committee Work Plan 
2017/18 – March

• Freedom to Speak up Investigation – 
March

CQC 

• CQC National Maternity Survey 2015 – 
April

• Section 29A Notice – May

• Care Quality Commission – early actions 
from Inspection – July

• CQC Report and QIP – November, 
December

• CQC Improvement Plan Update – January 

• Cancer 62 day – Improvement Action 
Plan January 
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Terms of Reference

• Safety and Quality Committee Terms of 
Reference – June, August

• Infection Prevention and Control Terms 
of Reference – July, November

• Medicines Safety Sub Committee – Terms 
of Reference – August

• Health and Safety – Terms of Reference – 
September

• Hospital Reducing Mortality Group – 
Terms of Reference – September 

• Transfusion Group – Terms of Reference 
– November

The Finance and Performance 
Committee comprises Non-Executive and 
Executive Directors within its membership. 
It met on 10 occasions during the financial 
year and achieved an attendance rate of 
80%. The Committee held its final meeting 
on 24 January 2017 due to the change in 
the Governance Structure. However, this 
is now an Executive Committee which 
reports on a monthly basis into the Trust 
Management Board. The Committee was 
supported by the Company Secretary. 
The Committee approved a work plan for 
2016-2017, which covered the following 
key areas:

Monthly reports

• KPI Dashboard – April to January

• Activity Report – April to January

• Workforce Report – April to January

• Finance Report – April to January

• Capital Report – April to January

Financial, Business Cases and Strategy

• Financial Plan 2016/17 – April

• Provision of IT Services – April

• Operational Delivery Plan – May, July

• High Level Plan for Workforce Issues – 
May

• Estates Strategy – June

• Refer to Treatment Investment – June

• Control Total Update – June

• Viability of Apple – June

• Financial Recovery Plan – July, August, 
September, October

• Reference Costs Compliance statement 
– July

• SSG Report Nurse Staffing and agency– 
August, October

• Business Planning 17/18 and 18/19 – 
October

• Hospital Pharmacy Transformation 
Project – October

• Draft Financial Planning submission – 
November

• Final Planning submission – December

• Medical Agency Reduction Plan – 
December, January 

• Nursing Agency Reduction Plan – 
December, January

• Electronic Patient Record – December

• Cost Improvement Plan 2017/18 – 
January 

• Draft Financial Plan 2017/18 – January 

• Estate Strategy Phase I Strategic Outline 
Case – January 

Special Focus Topics

• Delayed Transfer of Care – April

• Theatre 10 Usage Report – May 

• Coding – May

• Second CT Scanner – October

• Gilwern Assessment Unit – October

• Temporary Mobile Theatre – November

• Theatre 10 – January 

Governance

• Board Assurance Framework – Failure to 
achieve constitutional targets – June

• Internal Audit Review – Financial Plan 
Assurance – July, August

• Surgical Division Update – September

• Medical Division Update – October

The Charitable Funds Committee 
supports the Trust Board to discharge its 
functions as the Corporate Trustee, for Wye 
Valley NHS Trust Charitable Funds. The 
Committee met on three occasions during 
the year and achieved an attendance rate 
of 63%.The Charitable Funds Committee 
covered the following key areas:

• Quarter 4 Finance Report – May, Quarter 
1 & 2 – December, Quarter 3 March

• Options Appraisal – next ‘big ticket’ item 
– May

• Fundraising Report – Quarterly Update 
– May, Six month update – December, 
Update March

• Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16 – 
December

• Utilisation of Stanley Holland Endowment 
Fund – December, March

• Ultrasound Scanner for Leominster 
Community Hospital – December

• Annual Review of Terms of Reference – 
March

(e) Corporate Governance

Review of Code of Governance

The Trust is not required to comply with the 
UK Corporate Governance Code. However, 
the Trust has drawn on best practice 
available, including those aspects of the 
Code of Governance that we consider to be 
relevant.

The Trust has also undertaken a self-
assessment of Monitor’s Well Led 
Framework which was presented to the 
Audit Committee on 21 March and the 
Board of Directors on 6 April 2017. 

(f) Quality Governance

The Safety and Quality Committee now 
renamed Clinical Quality Committee (see 
page 28) provides the Board of Directors 
with assurance on all aspects of Quality 
Governance. The Director of Nursing has 
delegated authority for Quality and Safety.

The performance of Quality has been 
monitored closely by the Board of Directors 
throughout the year with a summary 
quality report provided by the Director of 
Nursing detailing monthly performance in 
the form of Key Performance Indicators 
with supporting narrative.
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A Clinical Audit Plan is in place which is 
reviewed by the Clinical Quality Committee 
as well as the Trust’s Audit Committee. 
There is a Clinical Audit and Effectiveness 
Committee which is a sub Committee of 
the Clinical Quality Committee and provides 
and Annual Report of performance to the 
Clinical Quality Committee.

All serious incidents are reported to 
Commissioners and to other bodies in 
line with current reporting requirements. 
In addition to this the Clinical Quality 
Committee and Trust Board also see high 
level reports of all serious incidents and the 
Clinical Quality Committee undertakes a 
monthly ‘deep dive’ into serious incidents. 
Root cause analysis is undertaken with 
action plans being implemented by the 
relevant Division or Directorate. There were 
three ‘never events’ reported in 2016/17. 

The 2016/17 Quality Account was reviewed 
by the Clinical Quality Committee on 
27th April 2017. The governance process 
associated with the production of the 
Quality Account 2016-17 was presented 
to the Audit Committee for review on 21 
March 2017 prior to it being circulated 
to stakeholders for comment. The 
Stakeholders included:

• Overview and Scrutiny Committee

• Health Watch Herefordshire

• Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group

The final Quality Account 2016/17 will be 
published on 30 June 2017.

(g) Discharge of Statutory Functions

Arrangements in place for the discharge 
of statutory functions contained within 
the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 
All statutory functions are assigned 
to Executive Directors and the Trust’s 
Governance structure in place supports the 
delivery and compliance with the statutory 
functions.

The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 
(Contingency Planning) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2012 made changes to the 
way Civil Contingencies requirements 
are delivered. This resulted in NHS 
England producing a set of Emergency 
Preparedness, Resilience and Response 
(EPRR) core standards for Trusts. The 
requirement was set out for NHS Trusts 
to identify an Accountable Emergency 
Officer. In this Trust the Chief Operating 
Officer (COO) is the Accountable Officer. 
In October 2016 the Trust’s Board of 
Directors reviewed a self-assessment 
against NHS Core Standards for Emergency 
Preparedness, Resilience and Response 
required by NHS England. The Board 
approved the Trust’s assessment of its 
current status of compliance against the 
core standards. 

Control measures are in place to ensure 
that all the organisation’s obligations 
under equality, diversity, and human 
rights legislation are met. Equality Impact 
Assessment forms part of the Trust 
documentation for policy creation and 
ensures all policies are assessed. A Board 
Workshop was also held on 2 March to 
review the Trust’s Equality and Diversity 
Objectives; these were approved by the 
Trust Board 6 April Board.

The Trust also has policies and controls 
systems in place for Health and Safety, 
Health at Work and Counter Fraud and 
corruption see page 46 of the Annual 
Report 2016/17.

As an employer, with staff entitled to 
membership of the NHS Pension scheme, 
control measures are in place to ensure all 
employer obligations contained within the 
scheme regulations are met. This includes 
ensuring that deductions from salary, 
employer’s contributions, and payments in 
to the scheme are in accordance with the 
scheme rules, and that member pension 
scheme records are accurately updated in 
accordance with the timescales detailed in 
the regulations.

(h) Quality and Accuracy of Elective 
Waiting Time Data

The Trust had not formally reported on its 
18 week Referral to Treatment performance 
since April 2015 due to an adverse review 
by the Intensive Support Team (Elective 
Care). This was due to significant data 
quality issues 420,000 open referrals and 
the Trusts Patient Administration System 
alongside the use of ‘business rules’. Since 
then a great deal of progress has been 
made and the Trust returned to reporting 
on 19th January 2017 reporting December 
2016’s position. After the March 2015 
IST review a programme of work was 
instigated by the Chief Operating Officer. 
This included the validation of open 
referrals, service development, policy 
reviews and staff training. Three further 
IST reviews were undertaken in May 2016, 
September 2016 and December 2016. 
After these reviews the Chief Operating 
Officer advised the Board of Directors in 
January 2017 that significant progress 
had been made against all the actions. He 
recommended to the Board of Directors 
that the Trust return to reporting in January 
2017 at that point there were seven key 
actions identified in the December 2016 
report for which plans were in place.

Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group and Powys Trust Health Board 
commissioned a review of Wye Valley NHS 
Trust’s Refer to Treatment Harm Review 
Process. The review provided assurance 
that the process undertaken by Wye Valley 
NHS Trust to effectively review long waiting 
Refer To Treatment patients was sound and 
deemed to be good practice.
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Risk Assessment

(a)  Risk Assessment

Wye Valley NHS Trust undertakes a 
consistent approach in the assessment of 
risks and follows a five-step process:

1. Identify 

2. Analyse 

3. Evaluate 

4. Treat 

5. Monitor

The details for how this is achieved are set 
out in the Risk Management and Assurance 
procedure which reflects the approach of 
the management of all types of risks.

The Board of Directors agreed that the 
Trust’s Risk appetite would be reviewed on 
an annual basis. This was agreed as part of 
the Risk Management and Board Assurance 
Framework Strategy approved by the Board 
of Directors on 6 April 2017.

(b)  Strategic Risks 

At the 31 March 2017 the following 
Strategic Risks were on the Board 
Assurance Framework. These risks have 
been reviewed monthly by the Trust 
Board from April until November and then 
due to a more robust Risk and Executive 
Committee being implemented the cycle 
of reporting moved to quarterly. This will 
continue into 2017/18 financial year.

• Risk to health, safety & welfare of 
service users due to ineffective quality 
governance systems & processes

• Risk that the published high mortality 
indices are an alert of possible poor 
quality of care and therefore of 
potentially avoidable deaths

• Risk of non-achievement of the 18 week 
pathway across multiple areas within 
admitted and non-admitted pathways 
leading to a failure to meet constitutional 
targets and increase of potential harm to 
patient

• Risk of continued failure of the Urgent 
Care Pathway causing a reducing ability 
to provide elective services and a sub 
optimal service for urgent care at certain 
times

• Risk to the financial sustainability of 
Wye Valley NHS impacting upon the 
sustainability of the future of the 
Trust and lack of investment in service 
development

• Risk to recruitment of new staff and 
retaining current staff leading to high 
nurse agency costs where vacancies 
cannot be filled

• Risk of Critical Failure in Hutted Ward 
Environment causing a risk of harm to 
staff and patients and ability to provide 
inpatient care in those areas

• Risk of failure to implement phase 1 of 
the Electronic Patient Record Programme 
(INFORM)

The following strategic risks were closed 
during the financial year

• Risk of failure to achieve constitutional 
targets – closed due to being represented 
by other strategic risks

• Risk to the Trust’s credibility and 
reputation due to remaining in Special 
Measures – closed due to the Trust 
being lifted out of Special Measures 
and forming a partnership with South 
Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust.

(c)  Newly Identified Risks 

At the 1 April 2016, the Trust had 104 
risks on its risk register. During the year, 
new risks were identified and added to the 
register with 75 risks being closed after 
effective management and mitigation. At 
the 31 March 2017, the Trust had 148 risks 
on its risk register. The newly identified 
risks were categorised as follows:

Low = 0

Moderate = 27

High = 98

Extreme = 23

(d)  Additional Future Risks for 2017-
2018

Risks for 2017/18 are set out within the 
Board Assurance Framework which is 
aligned to the 10 point plan.

(e)  Data security breaches 2016-2017

There have been 26 data security breaches 
during 2016/17, 25 of which were 
Information Governance Serious Incident 
Level 2 and 1 which was level 1. The 
breaches were the following types:

Breach Type Volume

Disclosed in error 22

Non secure disposal 1

Lost / stolen paperwork 1

Unauthorised access / 
disclosure

1

Other 1

Total 26

Root Cause Analyses (RCA) were 
undertaken and all identified actions were 
completed.
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The Risk and Control Framework

(a)  Risk Management and Assurance 
Strategy

The Trust has a Risk Management and 
Assurance Strategy in place and this was 
last reviewed and approved by the Board 
of Directors on 6 April 2017. The strategy 
was developed to support the delivery of 
strategic objectives, comply with legal and 
statutory requirements, national guidance 
and National Health Service Litigation 
Authority requirements.

The purpose of the strategy is to provide 
clear instruction on the process for risk 
management, and to enable the Trust to 
actively monitor, manage and prioritise the 
management of all risks. The key elements 
of the strategy are:

• Statement of Intent

• Definitions

• Duties of staff

• Risk Management Organisational 
Structure

• Risk Management Process

• Communication

• Training of staff to ensure that they 
understand the principles of risk 
management and can actively manage 
risks within their areas of operation

• Key Performance Indicators

• Equality Impact Assessments

The Risk Management and Assurance 
Strategy describes management 
responsibility for accepting actual and 
potential risks. The score of a risk will 
determine at what level decisions on 
acceptability of the risk are made and 
where it should be escalated to. It also 
states the key individuals in the Trust, 
who are kept informed about new risks or 
changes to existing risks. 

(b)  Risk Management, control and 
mechanisms for assurance

The Trust Board is responsible and 
accountable for owning the risk and control 
framework, and for ensuring that any risks 
that could affect the achievement of the 
Trust’s strategic objectives are adequately 
controlled via the Board Assurance 
Framework. The Board also reviews the 
effectiveness of internal controls and 
monitors the work of the Committees 
with delegated responsibility for risk 
management.

Board members are responsible for:

• Approving the risk management and 
assurance strategy

• Ensuring risk information is available to 
them to support the decision making 
process

• Participating in the identification and 
evaluation of risks appropriate to the 
decisions they are making

The Audit Committee, through assurance 
processes including Internal and External 
Audit, provides an independent objective 
opinion to the Board on whether the risk 
management arrangements in place are 
effective.

The Clinical Quality Committee provides the 
Board with an independent and objective 
review of all aspects of quality and safety 
relating to the provision of care and 
services. 

A revised Risk Management Executive was 
set up in January 2017. The Committee is 
Chaired by the Trust’s Managing Director 
and attended by the Executive Team in 
addition to Divisional representation. The 
Risk Management Executive has currently 
met on three occasions and reviews the 
following risks:

• Medical, Surgical and Corporate Risks 
rated 15 and above

• New risks opened during the previous 
month rated 15 and above

• Risks closed during the previous month

• The Board Assurance Framework before 
presentation to Trust Board

The Health and Safety Group ensures 
the Trust discharges its health and safety 
duties, by setting strategy, monitoring 
health and safety performance, reviewing 

audit findings, and agreeing plans. The 
Group reports to the Risk Management 
Executive through the Associate Director of 
Corporate Governance.

Key individuals are also responsible for 
advising and co-ordinating specific risk 
issues and have a role in ensuring both 
deterrents to, as well as prevention of risks, 
are in place.

(c)  Board Assurance Framework

For 2016-2017, the Trust Board maintained 
its review of strategic risk and extreme 
operational risks (quarterly) through the 
Board Assurance Framework. The Board 
Assurance Framework follows Department 
of Health guidance and includes the 
following elements:

• The trust’s strategic objectives

• Executive director lead

• Principle risks that may threaten the 
achievement of the objectives

• Key controls to manage the risks

• Arrangements for obtaining assurance on 
the key controls

• Gaps in control

• Plans to take corrective action where 
gaps are identified

The Board Assurance Framework supports 
the organisation in delivering a sound 
system of internal control and provides 
evidence to support the Governance 
Statement. 
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(d)  Risk Maturity Review

A Risk Maturity Review was undertaken 
by the Trusts Internal Auditors RSM and 
presented to the Audit Committee in 
March 2017. The review provided the Trust 
with the following position in relation 
to Governance (defined/managed), Risk 
Identification (managed), Risk Assessment 
(defined), Risk Mitigation (aware/defined), 
Assurance (aware), Monitoring and 
Reporting (defined/managed). The Audit 
Committee approved that this assessment 
would be undertaken again within 12 
months to ensure improvement in this area. 
The review was also used to inform the 
Risk Management and Board Assurance 
Framework Strategy.

Review of Effectiveness of Risk 
Management and Internal Control

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility 
for reviewing the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control and in doing 
so have reviewed the effectiveness of risk 
management arrangements.

In addition to reviewing the Head of 
Internal Audit Opinion (see effective 
management systems under Scope of 
Responsibility), I have taken into account 
the following when coming to my 
conclusion:

• The Board Assurance Framework 
provides me with evidence on the 
effectiveness of controls that mitigate 
risks to the organisation. The Trust’s 
Internal Auditors, External Auditors, Care 
Quality Commission and Clinical Audit, 
also inform my review

• The Trust Board of Directors has ensured 
that Risk Management processes are 
in place and has assured itself that the 
organisation has properly identified the 
significant risks it faces in delivering its 
Strategic Objectives. Controls are in place 
to mitigate those risks and the impact 
they have on the organisation and its 
stakeholders

• The Audit Committee has reviewed 
arrangements for Risk Management 
and the Board Assurance Framework 
by receiving a series of reports on risk 
management in addition to the Internal 
Audit Report on Risk Maturity which 
has enabled the Committee to advise 
the Board on the adequacy of those 
arrangements throughout the Trust

• The Finance and Performance Committee 
has undertaken reviews of the strategic 
risks on the Board Assurance Framework 
which relate to this Committee – see 
Finance and Performance Committee 
page 29

• The Trust Executive Management 
has reviewed the Board Assurance 
Framework, on a monthly basis, ensuring 
risks which affect the achievement of 
the Trust’s corporate objectives, are 
effectively managed or mitigated and 
reported as appropriate to the Trust 
Board

• The Risk Management Executive reviews 
all risks which are rated 15 and above

• External Audit undertakes an annual 
review on specific areas to support 
the opinion on the accounts and the 
statutory Value for Money Conclusion 

• The Trust has a Local Anti-Fraud Service 
provided RSM. The Work Plan for 2016-
17 was agreed with the Director of 
Finance and Information and approved 
by the Audit Committee in April

My review confirms that Wye Valley 
NHS Trust has a generally sound system 
of internal control that supports the 
achievement of its policies, aims and 
objectives.
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Significant Issues Facing the Trust during 2017-18

Moving into 2017/18 the Trust, despite 
being removed from special measures for 
Quality, still faces significant challenges. 
These include:

• A challenging deficit position and 
significant Cost Improvement Programme 

• The ability to recruit and retain the 
nursing and medical workforce

• The ability to sustain the quality 
improvement journey 

The Trust starts 2017/18 with a challenging 
financial deficit position of £24.6m and a 
Cost Improvement Programme to deliver 
of £10.2m. The Trust has signed up to 
a revised control total which enables it 
to access the national Sustainability and 
Transformation Fund. However, by signing 
up to a revised control total an element 
of financial support is also provided 
which reduces the Trust’s borrowing 
requirement. The Trust will also be able 
to access working capital borrowing at 
lower interest rates. In addition to this the 
Trust will also be protected from national 
contract performance fines. It is therefore 
vital that the Trust deliver the control total. 
A condition of accessing the STF is the Trust 
must improve its performance against the 
national 4 hour ED Standard and it must 
achieve a performance of 90% against this 
standard by September and 95% by end of 
the March 2018.

Recruitment and retention of the nursing 
and medical workforce is a continuing issue 
for the Trust. Due to the high number of 
vacancies and high turnover of nursing 
staff, agency spend on nursing is significant 
and must be reduced. These costs and 
the Trust’s ability to reduce them will 
also have an impact upon the Trust to 
deliver its Cost improvement Programme. 
Medical workforce challenges must also 
be addressed to ensure improvement in 
productivity and recruitment issues are 
resolved.

The Trust has only recently come out of 
special measures with the Care Quality 
Commission for quality and with the 
support of South Warwickshire NHS 
Foundation Trust through a strategic 
partnership it must ensure that its quality 
improvement journey is sustained. The 
quality governance systems and processes 
are still embryonic and need to embed into 
the divisions with appropriate reporting 
into the Clinical Quality Committee.

The sustainability of the Trust both in terms 
of its clinical services and organisational 
form are also key issues which must be 
resolved during the financial year. A 
Clinical Strategy must be developed taking 
into account One Herefordshire and the 
Sustainability and Transformation Plans. A 
future organisational form also needs to 
be agreed for the Trust with the support of 
South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust 
and NHS Improvement.
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To deal with the significant issues detailed 
above the Trust’s Board of Directors has 
approved the Annual Operational Plan 
2017-18 and the list of objectives below 
provide a level of granularity with some 
specific actions:

Deliver ED standard

Implement the learning on acute flow from 
the South Warwickshire NHS Foundation 
Trust and other best practice models to 
support compliance with the National ED 
Plan.

Review acute and community hospital bed 
numbers to ensure the correct balance and 
effective patient flow.

Deliver RTT standard

Incentivise an improvement in theatre 
productivity to deliver more elective work 
in house.

Work with Hereford CCG and Powys Local 
Health Board to reduce waiting times to 
meet national target requirements. 

Financial Benchmark with South 
Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust

Benchmark clinical and non-clinical 
functions to support future CIP 
identification.

Develop a model to establish the fixed costs 
of operating key specialties to support the 
case for a ‘tariff plus’ solution.

Reduce spend on Agency Nursing

Implement new Nurse Bank arrangement 
and rates of pay and close the Apple 
Agency reducing overall dependency on 
agency staff. 

Review ward and senior nurse staff 
structures developing new roles and 
approaches to improve employed staffing 
levels. 

Medical Workforce Review

Ensure that all consultant job plans are 
reviewed and through this improve clinical 
productivity. 

Develop new clinical roles to address 
consultant recruitment challenges.

Progress One Herefordshire Plan

Secure the long term provision of out of 
hospital services in collaboration with the 
CCG and partner organisations.

Take steps towards creating an Accountable 
Care Model in Herefordshire.

Review and Streamline Governance

Complete the implementation of new 
governance arrangements and review these 
in the latter part of the year. 

Review the post-CQC QIP plan transferring 
the most critical actions into a high level 
corporate plan overseen by the Clinical 
Governance Committee and holding 
divisional teams to account on other actions 
and those already implemented as ‘business 
as usual’.

Assess Clinical Sustainability Models

Contribute to the planning and execution 
of local Sustainability and Transformation 
plans. 

Complete the review of clinical specialty 
strategies identifying sustainable solutions 
for the most challenged specialties. 

Agree Financial Recovery Trajectory 
with NHSI

Agree a realistic control total and 
supporting financing plan with NHS 
Improvement. 

Develop a case for a financial solution 
which will address the future sustainability 
of the Trust based on the structural 
challenges that we face. 

Programme manage a CIP plan to meet 
control total requirements

Secure funding for a capital investment 
programme which will deliver capacity 
requirements and replace obsolete facilities 
and equipment. 

Review Organisational Sustainability

Review the strategic partnership with 
South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust 
in collaboration with NHS Improvement 
to agree a future more sustainable 
organisational form.

Accountable Officer:  
Mr Glen Burley 
Chief Executive 

Organisation: Wye Valley NHS Trust

Signature: 

Date:
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2a The Remuneration 
and Terms of Service 
Committee 
 

The Remuneration and Terms of Service 
Committee (Workforce and Development 
Committee) is a Non-Executive Director 
Committee and it has two key purposes:

• To ensure executive and senior 
management development and 
continuity within the trust, including 
determining the policy and reward 
structure

• To take a strategic overview of 
human resource and workforce issues 
throughout the Trust

However, from April 2017 the Committee 
will operate as a Remuneration and Terms 
of Service Committee and will not be 
considering workforce issues.

The Committee’s Membership during the 
year was as follows:

• Richard Humphries (Committee 
Chairman) 

• Museji Takolia CBE (Chairman of the 
Board of Directors until Oct 2016) 

• Mark Waller

• Christobel Hargraves 

• Russell Hardy (Chairman of the Board of 
Directors from November 2016)

The work covered by the Committee is 
summarised in the Annual Governance 
Report on page 27

2b Statement on Policy on 
Remuneration 

The policy of the Workforce and 
Development Committee has continued to 
be guided by five principles:

• Reward will attract and retain high 
quality people

• There must be a clear link between 
performance and reward

• The rationale for setting salary/
performance pay levels must be clear to 
all

• Competitive levels of remuneration will 
be determined by reference to similar 
posts within comparable nhs trusts

• Rewards will reflect the market but not 
drive it

Executive Directors receive a fixed base 
salary. Benefits include pension provision. 
Directors are not paid a car allowance, 
nor are they provided with a Trust funded 
vehicle and they do not receive any private 
healthcare provision. 

Contracts of Directors include a six-month 
notice period; senior managers have a three 
months’ notice.

During the year the Trust engaged third 
parties for the services of Interim Director 
of Nursing and interim Director of Human 
Resources. The contract for the Interim 
Director of Nursing commenced on 11 
January 2016 and ended on 30 June 2016. 

2c Methods Used to 
Assess Performance of 
Executive Directors

Executive Directors all have objectives set 
for the financial year by the Managing 
Director. A review of performance of 
achievement of objectives is undertaken 
mid-way through the year and at the end 
of the year. 

2d Remuneration of 
Chairman and Non-
Executive Directors 

The Secretary of State for Health sets and 
reviews the level of remuneration payable 
to the Chairman and Non-Executive 
Directors (excluding NHS Foundation Trusts 
who set their own rates). In 2016-17 there 
was not an increase to the remuneration of 
these roles. The rates were £6,157 for Non-
Executive Directors and £18,621 for the 
Chairman of the Trust. The Chairman and 
the Non-Executive Directors do not receive 
a pension provision. 

2 Remuneration and Staff Report 
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2e Salaries and allowances (subject to audit)

2016-17 2015-16

Salary  
(bands 

of 
£5000)

Expense 
pay-

ments 
(taxable 
nearest 
£100)

Annual 
perfor-
mance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

Long 
term 

perfor-
mance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

All 
pension 
related 
benefits 
(bands 

of 
£2500) 

Total  
(bands 

of 
£5000) 

Salary 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

Expense 
pay-

ments 
(taxable 
nearest 
£100) 

Annual 
perfor-
mance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

Long 
term 

perfor-
mance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

All 
pension 
related 
benefits 
(bands 

of 
£2500) 

Total  
(bands 

of 
£5000) 

Name Title Duration £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

M Bignell
Director of 
People and 
Development

Left 
April 
16

10-15
(7.5)-
(10)

0-5 95-100 17.5-20
115-
120

M Seeley

Interim 
Director of 
People and 
Development

May 16 
to Oct 
16

60-65 60-65

S Smith
Director of 
People and 
Development

From 
Nov 16

40-45
100-
102.5

140-
145

H Oddy
Director of 
Finance

115-
120

5-7.5
110-
115

2.5-5
120-
125

M Clarke
Director of 
Nursing

Left 
Dec 15

5-10 5-10 70-75 15-17.5 85-90

L Flanagan
Director of 
Nursing

From 
Sep 16

55-60 25-27.5 80-85

D Price
Interim 
Director of 
Nursing

Jan 16 
to May 
16

20-25 20-25 25-30 25-30

F Burton
Interim 
Director of 
Nursing

Jun 16 
to Aug 
16

25-30 25-30

S Gilby
Medical 
Director

Left 
Dec 16

140-
145

17.5-20
160-
165

190-
195

105-
107.5

305-
310

R Beeken
Chief 
Executive

Sec-
onded 
to NHSI 
from 
Nov 16

110-
115

20-
22.5

130-
135

155-
160

55-57.5
220-
225

J Barnes
Chief 
Operating 
Officer

100-
105

45-47.5
145-
150

95-100
135-
137.5

240-
245

G Burley
Chief 
Executive

From 
Nov 16

10-15 10-15

J Ives
Managing 
Director

From 
Nov 16

25-30 25-30

C Ashton
Medical 
Director

From 
Nov 16

10-15 10-15

M Hunter
Director of 
Improvement

From 
Oct 16

50-55 50-55

R Hardy Chairman
From 
Nov 16

5-10 5-10

M Takolia 
CBE

Chairman
Left 
Oct 16

10-15 10-15 15-20 15-20

S Pennie
Non Executive 
Director

Left 
Apr-15

0-5 0-5

F Myers MBE
Non Executive 
Director

5-10 5-10 5-10 5-10

M Waller
Non Executive 
Director

5-10 5-10 5-10 5-10



38

2016-17 2015-16

Salary  
(bands 

of 
£5000)

Expense 
pay-

ments 
(taxable 
nearest 
£100)

Annual 
perfor-
mance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

Long 
term 

perfor-
mance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

All 
pension 
related 
benefits 
(bands 

of 
£2500) 

Total  
(bands 

of 
£5000) 

Salary 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

Expense 
pay-

ments 
(taxable 
nearest 
£100) 

Annual 
perfor-
mance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

Long 
term 

perfor-
mance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000)

All 
pension 
related 
benefits 
(bands 

of 
£2500) 

Total  
(bands 

of 
£5000) 

Name Title Duration £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

R Humphries
Non Executive 
Director

5-10 5-10 5-10 5-10

A Cottom
Non Executive 
Director

5-10 5-10 5-10 5-10

C Hargraves
Non Executive 
Director

5-10 5-10 5-10 5-10

2f Fair Pay Disclosure (subject to audit)

Reporting bodies are required to disclose 
the relationship between the remuneration 
of the highest paid director in their 
organisation and the median remuneration 
of the organisation’s workforce. For 2016-
17 the median salary based on annualised 
full time equivalent hours was £24,063 pa 

(2015-16, £24,063 pa). The highest paid 
director at Wye Valley NHS Trust in 2016-17 
was £190,000 (2015-16, £190,000). This 
was 7.9 times (2016-16, 7.9) the median 
salary of the workforce. In 2016-17, five 
employees received remuneration in excess 
of the highest paid director. Remuneration 

was between £206,000 and £320,000. 
Total remuneration includes salary, non-
consolidated performance-related pay, 
benefits-in-kind as well as severance 
payments. It does not include employer 
pension contributions and the cash 
equivalent transfer value of pensions.

2g Pension benefits 2016-17 (subject to audit)

Name Title

Real in-
crease in 

pension at 
60 (£2500 

bands)

Real 
increase 
in lump 

sum at 60 
(£2500 
bands)

Accrued 
pension 
at 60 as 

at 31.3.17 
(£5000 
bands) 

Accrued 
lump 

sum as at 
31.3.17  
(£5000 
bands)

Cash 
equivalent 

transfer 
values as 
at 1.4.16

Real 
increase 
in cash 

equivalent 
transfer 

value

Cash 
equivalent 

transfer 
values as 
at 31.1.17

Employ-
er’s con-
tribution 
to stake-
holder 

pension Notes

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

M Bignell
Director of People 
and Development

(2.5)-0 0-2.5 20-25 70-75 0 0 0 0  

S Smith
Director of People 
and Development

2.5-5 12.5-15 25-30 80-85 427 86 522 0  

H Oddy Director of Finance 0-2.5 5-7.5 45-50 135-140 854 43 917 0  

L Flanagan Director of Nursing 0-2.5 (2.5)-0 25-30 70-75 420 27 457 0  

S Gilby Medical Director 0-2.5 5-7.5 45-50 140-145 853 66 939 0  

R Beeken Chief Executive 0-2.5 0-2.5 45-50 115-120 611 57 682 0  

J Barnes
Chief Operating 
Officer

2.5-5 2.5-5 40-45 110-115 641 76 732 0

Remuneration for Non-Executive Directors is in accordance with statutory limits. As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable 
remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.

Salaries and allowances (subject to audit) continued

Note 1:  Remuneration identified on the table excludes payments made whilst on secondment when costs were met by NHSI.

Note 2:  Directors were seconded from South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust for a proportion of their time and the remuneration  
 identifed reflects this.

Note 3: These Directors were engaged on an interim basis during the year.
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2h Off Payroll engagements

For all new off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, for more than £220 per day and last longer than six months::

Table 1 Number

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2017 83

Of which, the number that have existed:

For less than one year at the time of reporting 33

For between one and two years at the time of reporting 22

For between two and three years at the time of reporting 8

For between three and four years at the time of reporting 4

For four or more years at the time of reporting 16

All existing off-payroll engagements have been subject to a risk based assessment to seek assurance that the individual is paying the right 
amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance has been sought.

Table 2 Number

Number of new engagements which include contractual clauses giving the Trust the right to request assurance in 
relation to income tax and National Insurance obligations

33

Number for whom assurance has been requested 33

Of which:

Assurance has been received 23

Assurance has not been received 10

Engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being received 0

An assurance was requested from all existing off payroll engagements via the agencies through whom the contractors were engaged. As at 
31 March 2017 there were 6 agencies who had not responded. These 6 agencies relate to the 10 contractors with whom assurance has not 
been received detailed in the table above.

NHSI have confirmed that the Trust processes and procedures for gaining assurance will obviate the need to gain central approval before 
each engagement has been made.

2i Consultancy expenditure

The Trust engaged external consultants on seven separate projects during 2016/17 incurring total expenditure of £247,000.

Analysis of consultancy 
services expenditure (+)

Expenditure Forecast Outrun

Type Supplier
Plan

£000s
Forecast

£000s
Variance

£000s

Special Measures CQC preparation Suzie Loader Consulting Ltd 37

Special Measures CQC preparation Bubble Production Ltd 7

Operational
Commencement fee for 
Divisional Operating Director

Axon Resourcing 2

Special Measures Management of change Darren Thorne Ltd 84

Operational Agency reduction support SSG Health Partners Ltd 50

Improvement Director support Financial recovery support Cutler Associates 33

Operational PMO agency support Venn Group 9

EPR project
Agency cover for employees 
seconded to EPR

Anthea Parker 25
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2j Exit packages (subject to audit)

The Trust reported one exit package in 2016-17 for the value of £71k. This has been detailed 
in the annual accounts.

2k Compensation for Loss of Office (subject to audit)

There has been no payment or compensation paid for early retirement or loss of office.

2l Staff Survey

Wye Valley 
NHS Trust in 

2015

Average 
(median) for 

combined 
Acute and 

Community 
Trusts

Wye Valley 
NHS Trust in 

2016

“Care of patients / service users is 
my organisation’s top priority.”

76% 75% 75%

“My organisation acts on concerns 
raised by patients /service users.”

73% 73% 71%

“I would recommend my 
organisation as a place to work.”

60% 59% 56%

“If a friend or relative needed 
treatment, I would be happy with 
the standard of care provided by 
this organisation.”

65% 68% 60%

Staff recommendation of the 
organisation as a place to work or 
receive treatment.

3.74 3.71 3.65

2m Social Media And Recruitment 

Social media is playing a central role in the 
Trust’s work to attract new employees.

It allows us to give a greater insight into 
the culture of the Trust and more flexibility 
in how we communicate with potential 
candidates.

This year we used Facebook to promote a 
student nurse recruitment campaign, which 
reached over 5,000 people and generated 
interest from student nurses at Cardiff and 
Nottingham Universities – areas where we 
have not reached previously. Facebook has 
allowed us to keep in touch with students 

who were offered positions with us and has 
helped us develop an online talent pool of 
nurse students. 

We also ran a pharmacy employee story 
to promote working for the Trust, which 
attracted a lot of attention on Facebook 
and directed interested people to our main 
website to find out more.

We are continuing to use Twitter to 
promote jobs and opportunities at the Trust 
and social media is proving a vital part of 
our work to attract people to work at the 
Trust. 
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2o Staff Sickness

Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements

2016-17 2015-16

Total days lost 27,506 25,251

Total staff years 2,612 2,502

Average working days lost per person 10.53 10.09

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 1 3

£000s £000s

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 71 72

2n Education and Development

This year, the Trust has been working 
to improve support and development 
opportunities for staff at all levels within 
the Trust.

This has included a drive to ensure that 
all staff benefit from regular appraisals 
and receive support for their career and 
professional development.

The Education and Development team 
is working to support organisational 
development, leadership and better access 
to clinical learning, including elearning.

Achievements this year include:

• Enhancing resources for interprofessional 
skills delivery and simulated learning

• Continued development of physicians 
associates

• Development of assistant practitioners

• Delivery of higher apprenticeship awards 
with a local provider 

• Committing to supporting the 
development of the new nursing 
associate role

• Supporting return to practice nursing

• Supporting staff with apprenticeship 
awards and developed apprenticeship 
programmes and roles for the future

• Developing preceptorship programmes 
incorporating academy style approach 
and ILM leadership programme.

• Developing education programmes to 
support overseas and EU recruitment 
initiatives

• Implementing leadership programme 
for Band 6 and 7 clinical leaders, 
incorporating Institute of Leadership and 
Management leadership programme

• Continuing support for provision 
of placements for preregistration 
professional programmes

• Delivering a clinical work experience 
programme for schools across 
Herefordshire and providing support for 
health care initiatives in schools
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2p Workforce by Ethnicity as at 31 March 2017

Ethnic origin Headcount %

White – British 2771 86.70

White – Irish 10 0.31

White – any other white background 69 2.16

White unspecified 1 0.03

White English 3 0.09

White Scottish 1 0.03

White Welsh 4 0.13

White Italian 2 0.06

White Polish 7 0.22

White mixed 1 0.03

White other European 3 0.09

Mixed – White & Black Caribbean 2 0.06

Mixed – White & Black African 5 0.16

Mixed – White & Asian 5 0.16

Mixed – any other mixed background 4 0.13

Asian or Asian British – Indian 108 3.38

Asian or Asian British – Pakistani 21 0.66

Asian or Asian British – Bangladeshi 7 0.22

Asian or Asian British – any other Asian background 21 1

Asian mixed 3 0.09

Black or Black British – Caribbean 6 0.19

Black or Black British – African 16 0.5

Chinese 8 0.25

Any other ethnic group 22 0.69

Filipino 8 0.25

Other specified 2 0.06

Not stated 75 2.35

Grand Total 3196 100

Gender split for general staff

Female 2,714

Male 482

Grand Total 3,196

Gender split for Trust Board

Female 4

Male 8

Grand Total 12
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2q Employee Health & Wellbeing 

A Staff Health & Wellbeing scheme ‘Fit to 
Work’ has been launched to improve the 
health and wellbeing of staff and comprises 
three new schemes: 

• Access to a range of physical activities

• Mental health initiatives 

• Access to Physiotherapy services

We now offer circuit training and pilates, 
with plans for Yoga to start soon. Our 
Library Services have introduced a book 
club, called Reading Well, a collection of 
mood boosting and self-help books. The 
Trust also supports the hospital cricket club, 
badminton club, reduced gym membership, 
cycle to work schemes and use of pool 

bikes, along with an annual weight loss 
club.

We want to provide better support for 
our staff on long-term sick leave with 
stress, anxiety and depression. We will be 
introducing resilience training and support 
for staff to help manage the conditions, 
whether they are suffering with them, or 
want to support colleagues.

We are also hoping to secure funding to 
introduce Mental Health First Aid training 
to help managers identify and support 
staff with mental health issues. It is hoped 
that early intervention will lead to better 
support for staff and ultimately reduce 
sickness absence.

Workforce profile 2016-17 as at 31.03.17

Head count

Add Prof Scientific and Technical 107

Additional Clinical Services 756

Administrative and Clerical 717

Allied Health Professionals 266

Estates and Ancillary 50

Healthcare scientists 66

Medical and dental 279

Nursing and Midwifery registered 951

Students 4

Grand total 3,196

2r Improving staff communication

Engaging with staff on their terms is 
essential – during the last 12 months 
we’ve established three new two-way 
communication channels which have made 
it easier for staff to engage with senior 
managers.

Our Rumour Mill is a virtual pin board 
which sits on our intranet and allows 
staff to post questions and rumours. 
Executive team responses are then posted 
for everyone to read. This has proved 
immensely popular with 489 postings 
from November until the end of March. 
The range of questions is vast, covering 
everything from queries over car parking, 
to HR issues, the provision of refreshment 

facilities, senior management salaries 
and important questions over our estates 
strategy and the direction of travel for the 
Trust as a whole.

Through our Open Door programme, the 
managing director’s office door is open 
twice a month for staff to drop in and talk 
about any issues, and through our Let’s Talk 
scheme, an executive visits one site each 
month to meet staff face to face to brief 
them on key Trust initiatives and have a 
discussion about issues affecting them.

Through Let’s Talk, staff are encouraged 
to invite executives to their regular team 
meetings.
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2s Freedom to Speak Up 

The Trust has introduced a new Freedom 
to Speak Up policy, which seeks to create 
a reporting culture in which staff feel able 
to speak up confidently about issues and 
concerns regarding clinical practices they 
feel are unsafe.

The move follows a national directive to 
create a more open and honest reporting 
culture in the NHS. It is also in direct 
response to the Trust’s own staff survey, 
which highlighted that staff did not always 
feel confident to raise concerns.

The Trust has introduced a number of 
initiatives to drive this open reporting 
culture:

• A new Freedom to Speak up Guardian 
will publicise the policy and work with 
Freedom to Speak Up Champions who 
will be appointed across service areas 
and divisions, Trust-wide

• The Freedom to Speak Up Guardian, 
alongside the Director of Nursing, will 
monitor concerns via Clinical Quality 
Committee 

• A film produced by Health Education 
England will be shown to new staff 
during induction, outlining the 
importance of speaking up and the 
mechanisms through which to do it

• The Trust has already introduced a 
confidential helpline and an email 
address for staff and is in the process 
of launching a link on the Freedom to 
Speak Up web site, akin to Rumour 
Mill, to enable staff to raise concerns 
anonymously 

The Trust hopes that these new schemes 
will encourage staff to report incidents 
confidently as part of their everyday 
working lives and will benefit the Trust, 
helping learning and implementing changes 
where needed.

2t Recognising staff

Throughout the year our staff have 
continued to do some exceptional work. 

A MS Clinical Nurse Specialist was 
recognised by national charity MS Trust and 
won the national award for ‘Outstanding 
MS Specialist Nurse’. Four awards were 
also won at the Mentor Awards held at 
Worcester Arena; ‘Outstanding Mentor in 
Midwifery’, ‘Outstanding Mentor in Allied 
Health Professionals’, ‘Outstanding Mentor 
in Nursing’, ‘Outstanding Placement Area’ 

In addition, staff were awarded Going the 
Extra Mile awards after being nominated by 
patients, service users and other members 
of staff for going over and above the call 
of duty

Going the Extra Mile is a staff award 
scheme to recognise outstanding 
contributions of individuals or teams across 
the Trust.

Between March 2016 and April 2017, 55 
nominations were received. Nominations 
are vetted by a panel, which meets 
monthly. Certificates, or letters of 
appreciation, are then sent to the 
nominees.

Following the introduction of the Trust’s 
new values – Compassion, Accountability, 
Respect and Excellence – the award criteria 
has been widened and those nominating 
are required to set out which value the 
nomination most closely aligns with. This 
means that the Trust can continue its work 
to engage staff in the values, which aim to 
guide everyday working life.

In the coming year, the awards will play a 
key role in further engaging with staff and 
recognising their outstanding contributions 
to the Trust. 
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2u Staff Policies

Equality and Diversity

The Trust ensures compliance with the 
Disability Discrimination in Employment 
Policy by adopting procedures that prevent 
discrimination against future or current 
employees in all aspects of the recruitment 
process or their employment. 

The Trust takes all reasonable steps to 
make adjustments and remove barriers that 
put disabled workers at a disadvantage, 
including ensuring that training, career 
development, and promotion opportunities 
are equally available to the Trust’s disabled 
employees. 

The Trust has an Equal Opportunities Policy 
that has been formally agreed. 

The Trust has a key responsibility to ensure 
that promoting equality and valuing 
diversity is central to all Trust policy making, 
service delivery, employment practices 
and community involvement. All levels of 
staff are required to undertake training in 
Equality and Diversity, and thus understand 
the principles of this. Staff receive training 
on Equality and Diversity every three years. 

Health and Safety

The Trust is supported by a Health and 
Safety Officer and a Fire Officer who 
provide professional advice, guidance 
and training to managers with the aim of 
ensuring that safe working practices are 
adopted and legal obligations met. 

The main focus of this work is the 
development of practical risk assessments, 
policies and working procedures that 
ensure and maintain high standards. 

Health and Safety performance is 
monitored by the Trust’s Health and Safety 
Committee, which reports to the Quality 
Committee, a committee of the Board. 

Health at Work 

The Trust provides Occupational Health 
Services for all staff with an on-site Health 
at Work Department. 

The Health at Work Department is 
concerned with all aspects of health related 
to work and the working environment and 
therefore undertakes assessments of how 
the work employees undertake affects 
their health as well as how their health may 
impact on their ability to work. 

The Trust recognises its legal responsibilities 
to safeguard employees’ health and safety 
at work; the Health at Work Department 
helps the Trust achieve this. 

Counter Fraud and Corruption 

The Trust has in place effective 
arrangements to ensure a strong counter 
fraud and corruption culture exists across 
the organisation and to enable any 
concerns to be raised and appropriately 
investigated. These arrangements are 
underpinned by a dedicated Local Counter 
Fraud Specialist and a programme of 
counter fraud education and promotion. 
The fitness for purpose of these 
arrangements is overseen by the Audit 
Committee which has confirmed them as 
being effective and proportionate to the 
assessed risk of fraud.
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3a Independent auditors report to the directors of Wye 
Valley NHS Trust

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO 
THE DIRECTORS OF WYE VALLEY NHS 
TRUST

We have audited the fi nancial statements 
of Wye Valley NHS Trust (the “Trust”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2017 under the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
(the “Act”). The fi nancial statements 
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Financial Position, 
the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ 
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and 
the related notes. The fi nancial reporting 
framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and 
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European 
Union, as interpreted and adapted by the 
Department of Health Group Accounting 
Manual 2016/17 (the “2016/17 GAM”) and 
the requirements of the National Health 
Service Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the Directors 
of Wye Valley NHS Trust, as a body, in 
accordance with Part 5 of the Act and as 
set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement 
of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited 
Bodies published by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited. Our audit work 
has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the Trust’s Directors those matters 
we are required to state to them in an 
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 
do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s 
Directors, as a body, for our audit work, 
for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors, 
the Accountable Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement 
of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors 
are responsible for the preparation of the 
fi nancial statements and for being satisfi ed 
that they give a true and fair view. Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an 
opinion on the fi nancial statements in 
accordance with applicable law, the Code 
of Audit Practice published by the National 
Audit Offi ce on behalf of the Comptroller 
and Auditor General (the “Code of Audit 
Practice”) and International Standards on 
Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 
require us to comply with the Auditing 

Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for 
Auditors.

As explained in the statement of the 
Chief Executive’s responsibilities, as the 
Accountable Offi cer of the Trust, the 
Accountable Offi cer is responsible for the 
arrangements to secure economy, effi ciency 
and effectiveness in the use of the Trust’s 
resources. We are required under Section 
21(3)(c) and Schedule 13 paragraph 10(a) 
of the Act to be satisfi ed that the Trust has 
made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, effi ciency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources and to report by exception 
where we are not satisfi ed. 

We are not required to consider, nor have 
we considered, whether all aspects of the 
Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, 
effi ciency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the audit of the financial 
statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial 
statements suffi cient to give reasonable 
assurance that the fi nancial statements are 
free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the Trust’s 
circumstances and have been consistently 
applied and adequately disclosed; the 
reasonableness of signifi cant accounting 
estimates made by the Directors; and 
the overall presentation of the fi nancial 
statements. In addition, we read all the 
fi nancial and non-fi nancial information 
in the Performance Report and the 
Accountability Report to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited fi nancial 
statements and to identify any information 
that is apparently materially incorrect based 
on, or materially inconsistent with, the 
knowledge acquired by us in the course of 
performing the audit. If we become aware 
of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies we consider the implications 
for our report.

Scope of the review of arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in 
accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, 
having regard to the guidance on the 
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specified criteria issued by the Comptroller 
and Auditor General in November 2016, 
as to whether the Trust had proper 
arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources 
to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 
The Comptroller and Auditor General 
determined these criteria as that necessary 
for us to consider under the Code of Audit 
Practice in satisfying ourselves whether 
the Trust put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the 
year ended 31 March 2017, and to report 
by exception where we are not satisfied.

We planned our work in accordance with 
the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our 
risk assessment, we undertook such work 
as we considered necessary. 

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

• the financial statements give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of Wye 
Valley NHS Trust as at 31 March 2017 
and of its expenditure and income for the 
year then ended; and

• the financial statements have been 
prepared properly in accordance with 
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, 
as interpreted and adapted by the 
Department of Health Group Accounting 
Manual 2016/17 and the requirements of 
the National Health Service Act 2006.

Emphasis of matter – Going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial 
statements, which is not modified, we 
have considered the adequacy of the 
disclosure made in note 1.2 to the financial 
statements concerning the Trust’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. The Trust 
incurred a deficit of £37.172m  during the 
year ended 31 March 2017 and at that date 
had net current liabilities of £10.886m. The 
Directors are seeking additional support 
from NHS Improvement for 2017/18 
and 2018/19 of £26.3m and £18.4m 
respectively. As disclosed in note 1.2 to the 
financial statements, NHS Improvement has 
not, at the date of our report, confirmed 
this support. These conditions, along with 
the other matters explained in note 1.2 
to the financial statements, indicate the 
existence of a material uncertainty which 
may cast significant doubt about the Trust’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. The 
financial statements do not include the 
adjustments that would result if the Trust 

was unable to continue as a going concern.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion:

• the parts of the Accountability Report to 
be audited have been properly prepared 
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by 
the European Union, as interpreted and 
adapted by the Department of Health 
Group Accounting Manual 2016/17 and 
the requirements of the National Health 
Service Act 2006; and

• the other information published together 
with the audited financial statements 
in the Performance Report and the 
Accountability Report for the financial 
year for which the financial statements 
are prepared is consistent with the 
audited financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to 
report by exception

We are required to report to you if we are 
not satisfied that the Trust has put in place 
proper  arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources.

Basis for adverse value for money 
conclusion

Financial Sustainability 

The Trust’s outturn position for 2016/17 
was a £37.2 million deficit which was 
a deterioration compared to the Trust’s 
original budget of a £18.4 million deficit. 
The Trust’s medium term financial plan 
shows further deficits of £24.6 million and 
£18.2 million for 2017/18 and 2018/19 
respectively. 

The Trust has been unable to set 
sustainable financial budgets primarily due 
to its current service configuration which 
impedes the Trust in fully delivering its cost 
improvement schemes and controlling the 
additional costs that arise from the high use 
of agency staff in the provision of patient 
care.

These issues are evidence of weaknesses in 
proper arrangements for planning finances 
effectively to support the sustainable 
delivery of strategic priorities and maintain 
statutory functions.

Operational Performance

The Trust was formally removed from the 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) special 
measures in November 2016 but continued 
to be rated as ‘requires improvement’ 
overall as a result of ‘requiring 

improvement’ ratings against three of the 
criteria assessed by CQC in respect of being 
safe, effective and well led. In addition, the 
Trust fails to meet a number of key national 
targets  such as the Accident & Emergency 
4 Hour Wait,  Ambulance Handovers and 
Referral to Treatment (RTT) waiting times.

These issues arise due to the Trust 
continuing to experience recruitment 
challenges and a high level of staff turnover 
which is heavily supported by agency and 
locum staff (approximately 30-40%). 
This is exacerbated by the geographical 
remoteness of the Trust and pressure 
on staff due to the Trust being under-
establishment.

These issues are evidence of weakness in 
arrangements for deploying the workforce 
effectively to deliver the Trust’s strategic 
priorities.

Adverse value for money conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard 
to the guidance issued by the Comptroller 
and Auditor General in November 2016, 
because of the significance of the matters 
described in the Basis for adverse value for 
money conclusion paragraphs, we are not 
satisfied that, in all significant respects, 
Wye Valley NHS Trust put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 
2017.

Referral of a matter to the Secretary of 
State

We are required to report to you if we 
refer a matter to the Secretary of State 
under section 30 of the National Health 
Service Act 2006 because we have reason 
to believe that the Trust, or an officer of 
the Trust, is about to make, or has made, 
a decision which involves or would involve 
the body incurring unlawful expenditure, 
or is about to take, or has begun to take 
a course of action which, if followed to its 
conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to 
cause a loss or deficiency.

On 22 May 2017 we referred a matter to 
the Secretary of State under section 30b 
of the National Health Service Act 2006 as 
we have reason to believe that Wye Valley 
NHS Trust has taken a course of action 
that, if followed to its conclusion, will lead 
to a breach of the Trust’s break-even duty 
for the three year period ending 31 March 
2018.
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We are also required to report to you if:

• in our opinion the Governance Statement 
2016-17 does not comply with the 
guidance issued by NHS Improvement; or

• we have reported a matter  in the public 
interest under section 24 of the Act in 
the course of, or at the conclusion of the 
audit; or

• we have made a written 
recommendation to the Trust under 
section 24 of the Act in the course of, or 
at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we have not been able to satisfy 
ourselves that the Trust has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 
2017.

We have nothing to report in respect of the 
above matters.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the 
audit of the financial statements of Wye 
Valley NHS Trust in accordance with the 
requirements of the Act and the Code of 
Audit Practice.

Director

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK 
LLP, Appointed Auditor

The Colmore Building

20 Colmore Circus

Birmingham

B4 6AT

26 May 2017
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Wye Valley NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended
31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16
NOTE £000s £000s

Gross employee benefits 10.1 (133,582) (123,771)
Other operating costs 8 (74,641) (68,225)
Revenue from patient care activities 5 159,111 159,080
Other operating revenue 6 18,456 18,966
Operating surplus/(deficit) (30,656) (13,950)

Investment revenue 12 22 18
Other gains and (losses) 0 0
Finance costs 13 (6,538) (5,608)
Surplus/(deficit) for the financial year (37,172) (19,540)
Public dividend capital dividends payable 0 0
  Transfers by absorption - gains 0 0
  Transfers by absorption - (losses) 0 0
Net Gain/(loss) on transfers by absorption 0 0
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (37,172) (19,540)

Other Comprehensive Income 2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Impairments and reversals taken to the revaluation reserve 0 (60)
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 15.1 3,644 7,220
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles 0 0
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of available for sale financial 
assets 0 0
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes 0 0
Other pension remeasurements 0 0
Reclassification adjustments
   On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0
Sub Total - Other Comprehensive Income 3,644 7,160

Total comprehensive income for the year (33,528) (12,380)

Financial performance for the year
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (37,172) (19,540)
Prior period adjustment to correct errors and other 
performance adjustments 0 0
IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12 impairments) 0 0
Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments) 17 (54) (462)
Adjustments in respect of donated gov't grant asset reserve 
elimination 22 (454)
Adjustment re absorption accounting 0 0
Adjusted retained surplus/(deficit) (37,204) (20,456)

IFRIC 12 Adjustment

Impairments to Fixed Assets

The notes on pages 7 to 41 form part of this account.

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009/10 
and the associated revenue cost of bringing PFI assets on to the balance sheet, an NHS Trust's 
financial performance measurement needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury 
measuring departmental expenditure.  Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from 
the application of IFRS to PFI, which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting 
purposes, should be reported as technical.  Any additional cost is not considered part of the 
organisation's operating position.  Subsequently, in January 2013, the DH introduced new guidance 
on this adjustment which stated that, where IFRIC 12 costs were lower than those under UK GAAP 
(as is the case with Wye Valley NHS Trust), the shortfall will not be an additional charge included 
within reported financial performance.

An impairment charge or reversal of any previous impairment made is not considered part of the 
Trust's operating position.

Page 2
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Wye Valley NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2017

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

NOTE £000s £000s
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 15 88,610 89,114
Intangible assets 16 6,457 165
Investment property 0 0
Other financial assets 0 0
Trade and other receivables 20.1 176 0
Total non-current assets 95,243 89,279
Current assets:
Inventories 19 3,494 2,935
Trade and other receivables 20.1 8,689 7,746
Other financial assets 0 0
Other current assets 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 21 2,565 3,610
Sub-total current assets 14,748 14,291
Non-current assets held for sale 0 0
Total current assets 14,748 14,291
Total assets 109,991 103,570

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (20,530) (22,120)
Other liabilities 0 0
Provisions 24 (42) (42)
Borrowings 23 (3,180) (2,936)
Other financial liabilities 0 0
DH revenue support loan 0 0
DH capital loan 23 (1,967) (1,285)
Total current liabilities (25,719) (26,383)
Net current assets/(liabilities) (10,971) (12,092)
Total assets less current liablilities 84,272 77,187

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 0 (134)
Other liabilities 0 0
Provisions 24 (1,020) (696)
Borrowings 23 (48,589) (51,635)
Other financial liabilities 0 0
DH revenue support loan 23 (56,019) (14,333)
DH capital loan 23 (10,532) (8,749)
Total non-current liabilities (116,160) (75,547)
Total assets employed: (31,888) 1,640

FINANCED BY:

Public Dividend Capital 21,040 21,040
Retained earnings (77,171) (39,999)
Revaluation reserve 24,243 20,599
Other reserves 0 0
Total Taxpayers' Equity: (31,888) 1,640

The notes on pages 7 to 41 form part of this account.

The financial statements on pages 2 to 6 were approved by the Board on 26 May 2017 and signed on its behalf by

Chief Executive: Date:

Page 3

26th May 2017
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Wye Valley NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity
For the year ending 31 March 2017

Public 
Dividend 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Revaluation 
reserve

Other 
reserves

Total 
reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2016 21,040 (39,999) 20,599 0 1,640
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (37,172) (37,172)
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, 
equipment

3,644 3,644

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of available for sale 
financial assets

0 0
Impairments and reversals 0 0
Other gains/(loss) (provide details below) 0 0
Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0
Reclassification Adjustments
Transfers between Reserves in respect of assets 
transferred under absorption

0 0 0 0 0

On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0
Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0
Originating capital for Trust established in year 0 0
Temporary and permanent PDC received - cash 0 0
Temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year 0 0
PDC written off 0 0 0
Transfer due to change of status from Trust to Foundation Trust 0 0 0 0 0
Other movements 0 0 0 0 0
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension 0 0 0
Other pensions remeasurement 0 0 0
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 0 (37,172) 3,644 0 (33,528)
Balance at 31 March 2017 21,040 (77,171) 24,243 0 (31,888)

Balance at 1 April 2015 19,971 (20,459) 13,439 0 12,951
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31 
March 2016
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year (19,540) (19,540)
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, 
equipment

7,220 7,220

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0
Impairments and reversals (60) (60)
Other gains / (loss) 0 0
Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0
Reclassification Adjustments
Transfers between revaluation reserve & retained 
earnings reserve in respect of assets transferred under 

0 0 0

On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0
Originating capital for Trust established in year 0 0
New PDC received - cash 1,069 1,069
PDC repaid in year 0 0
Other movements 0 0 0 0 0
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension 0 0
Other pension remeasurement 0 0
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year 1,069 (19,540) 7,160 0 (11,311)
Balance at 31 March 2016 21,040 (39,999) 20,599 0 1,640

Page 4
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Wye Valley NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Information on reserves

1 Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities. 
Additional PDC may also be issued to NHS trusts by the Department of Health. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital 
utilised by the NHS foundation trust, is payable to the Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

2 Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the NHS trust.

3 Revaluation Reserve
Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the 
extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in 
operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the 
extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic 
benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Page 5
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Wye Valley NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16
NOTE £000s £000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating surplus/(deficit) (30,656) (13,950)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 4,024 3,549
Impairments and reversals 17 (54) (462)
Other gains/(losses) on foreign exchange 0 0
Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0
Government Granted Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0
Release of PFI/deferred credit 0 0
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (559) (447)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (1,119) (1,809)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 0 0
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (1,582) 7,326
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities 0 0
Provisions utilised 24 (42) (42)
Increase/(Decrease) in movement in non cash provisions 252 30
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities (29,736) (5,805)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received 13 22 18
(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment (6,243) (8,963)
(Payments) for Intangible Assets (13) 0
(Payments) for Investments with DH 0 0
(Payments) for Other Financial Assets 0 0
(Payments) for Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 0
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE) 0 0
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (Intangible) 0 0
Proceeds from Disposal of Investment with DH 0 0
Proceeds from Disposal of Other Financial Assets 0 0
Proceeds from the disposal of Financial Assets (LIFT) 0 0
Loans Made in Respect of LIFT 0 0
Loans Repaid in Respect of LIFT 0 0
Rental Revenue 0 0
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (6,234) (8,945)

Net Cash Inform / (outflow) before Financing (35,970) (14,750)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Received 0 1,069
Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Repaid 0 0
Loans received from DH - New Capital Investment Loans 4,319 8,039
Loans received from DH - New Revenue Support Loans 41,686 31,552
Other Loans Received 0 0
Loans repaid to DH - Capital Investment Loans Repayment of Principal (1,854) (470)
Loans repaid to DH - Working Capital Loans/Revenue Support Loans 0 (17,219)
Other Loans Repaid 0 0
Cash transferred to NHS Foundation Trusts or on dissolution 0 0
Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases and On-SoFP 
PFI and LIFT (2,802) (2,903)
Interest paid (6,424) (5,608)
PDC Dividend (paid)/refunded 0 0
Capital grants and other capital receipts (excluding donated / government 
granted cash receipts) 0 0
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities 34,925 14,460

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,045) (290)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of the 
Period 3,610 3,900
Effect of exchange rate changes in the balance of cash held in foreign 
currencies 0 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end 21 2,565 3,610

Page 6
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the 
Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with the DH Group Manual for Accounts 2016-17 issued by the Department of Health.  
The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are 
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  
Where the Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to 
the particular circumstances of the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.  The particular policies adopted 
by the trust are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the 
accounts.

1.1 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.2 Going Concern
International Accounting Standard 1 requires the Board to assess, as part of the accounts preparation process, the Trust's ability to 
continue as a going concern. Paragraphs 4.89 and 4.90 of the Government Accounting Manual identify that the continuation of the 
service is sufficient evidence of going concern.  The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless there are 
plans for, or no realistic alternative other than, the dissolution of the Trust without the transfer of its services to another entity within the 
public sector.  In preparing the financial statements the Board of Directors have considered the Trust's overall financial position against 
the requirements of IAS1.

The Trust reported a surplus of £0.84m in 2014/15 only after the receipt of £12.7m of non-recurrent funding. In 2015/16 the Trust 
reported a deficit of £20.5m plus a capital to revenue transfer of £2.87m.  In 2016/17 the Trust has reported a deficit of £37.2m  equating 
to 21% of the Trust's turnover .  The Trust's cumulative Income and Expenditure position now shows as a deficit of £77.2m.  As at 31 
March 2017, the Trust has received cash support for its revenue position of £56m over the preceding two years.  The Trust's financial 
plan for 2017/18 and 2018/19 forecasts the delivery of further deficits of £24.6m and £18.2m respectively necessitating further revenue 
cash borrowing.  The Directors are seeking additional revenue cash support from NHS Improvement for 2017/18 [and 2018/19] of 
£26.3m [and £18.4m respectively].  This support and sources of borrowing have not been confirmed although it is expected that the 
Department of Health will continue to provide cash support.  The Trust anticipates that it may take some time before it can achieve 
financial balance on a sustainable basis.  The Board of Directors have carefully considered the principle of "going concern" and the 
Directors have concluded that there are material uncertainties related to the financial sustainability (profitability and liquidity) of the Trust 
which may cast significant doubt about the ability of the Trust to continue as a going concern.

Nevertheless, the Directors have concluded that assessing the Trust as a going concern remains appropriate.  The Trust has agreed 
contracts with its local commissioners for  2017/18 and services are being commissioned in the same manner in the future as in prior 
years and there are no discontinued operations.  The Trust has also entered in to a strategic partnership with South Warwickshire NHS 
Foundation Trust for them to provide executive leadership and support to the Trust.  No decision has been made to transfer services or 
significantly amend the structure of the organisation at this time.   The Board of Directors also has a reasonable expectation that the 
Trust will have access to adequate resources in the form of support from the Department of Health (NHS Act 2006 s42a) to continue to 
deliver the full range of mandatory services for the foreseeable future.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, still have reasonable expectations that the Trust will continue as a going concern for 
the foreseeable future.  On this basis, the Trust has adopted the going concern basis for preparing the accounts and has not included 
the adjustments that would result if it were unable to continue as a going concern.  The assessment accords with the statutory guidance 
contained within the 2016/17 Department of Health Group Accounting Manual.

1.3 Movement of assets within the DH Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Treasury FReM.  The FReM 
does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not 
been restated.  Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no 
restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or 
loss resulting is recognised in the SOCI, and is disclosed separately from operating costs.

Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income and 
expenditure entries.

1.4 Charitable Funds
Under the provisions of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, those Charitable Funds that fall under common control 
with NHS bodies are consolidated within the entity's financial statements.  In accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 
Statements, restated prior period accounts are presented where the adoption of the new policy has a material impact.  However, the 
value of charitable funds held by the Trust is not deemed to be material and has therefore not been consolidated in to the accounts in 
line with Note 1.31.
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1.5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
In the application of the NHS trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from 
those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1.5.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process 
of applying the NHS trust’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements.

a) Shareholdings by the Trust in Hoople Ltd
Hoople Ltd is a separate entity that was established in April 2011 as a joint venture to incorporate the Council and local health 
organisations (Herefordshire Council, Wye Valley NHS Trust and NHS Herefordshire CCG).  At its inception the council held all the 
shares, but on November 1 2011, when the Trust joined the company, they were gifted 21% of the share capital of the company (initial 
value of 21 pence).
The net asset value of Hoople as at 31 March 2017 is £1m.  This equates to a value of £210k in relation to the Trust's financial interest 
in Hoople which is not considered to be material to the accounts.
The Trust has therefore accounted for the gifted shares as an immaterial gifted asset.  However, under certain circumstances, the Trust 
may be liable for redundancy costs although none were identified at the balance sheet date.  All service charges from Hoople incurred 
by the Trust have been included in operating expenses for the year.

b) Radiotherapy unit
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT) has a built a Radiotherapy unit at the County Hospital site on land owned 
by the Trust.GHNHSFT have financed the build. Completion of the project was delivered in 2014/15 and on completion GHNHSFT took 
control of the unit.  The Trust receive a nominal rent for the land from GHNHSFT and the Trust will receive the unit at nil consideration at 
the end of the agreement in 25 years time.  Any costs incurred by the Trust are being recovered from GHNHSFT.  The Trust has 
determined that, as it does not control the use of the unit, it is not its asset and will not be included in its SoFP.  The asset will be 
recognised when the asset is transferred to the Trust in 25 years time.  The trust is accruing a deferred debtor over the period of the 
contract to reflect the eventual value of the asset transfer.

1.5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting 
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year.

a) 2016/17 PFI Lifecycle costs
The Trust accounts for lifecycle costs in line with the operators model.  All lifecycle costs are expensed due to the uncertainty in the 
timing of the capital programme.  The capital element expensed in the contract to date is £1,753K (2015/16 £1,731K).  The future total 
commitments for lifecycle costs is disclosed in Note 26.
The current operator model does not include inflation although the future liabilities disclosed in Note 26 have been adjusted to reflect the 
impact of future years inflation assumptions.

b) March 2017 revenue from patient care activities - incomplete spells of care
The year end value of revenue from patient care activities under contracts with Clinical Commissioning Groups has been estimated 
using actual activity undertaken during the month at a specialty level and priced at average specialty costs as a proxy to income due 
under National Tariff arrangements.  This methodology has been consistently applied during the in year monitoring process with a high 
degree of accuracy.  The carrying amount of the estimate at 31 March 2017 was £895k compared with a value of £970k in the previous 
year.

c) Property, plant and equipment valuations and remaining useful lives
The Trust commissioned an independent valuation of its land and buildings to ensure that an accurate position is reflected within Non 
Current Assets. As a result, the carrying value of buildings held by the Trust has been increased by £3.56m with £0.07m charged to the 
retained earnings reserve and the balance charged to the revaluation reserve as per IAS 36.  Equipment valuations are performed on a 
rolling basis through liaison with departmental managers during asset verification.
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1.6 Revenue  
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration receivable.  The main source of revenue for the trust is from commissioners for healthcare services.  
Revenue relating to patient care spells that are part-completed at the year end are apportioned across the financial years on the basis of 
costs incurred to date compared to total expected costs. 

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.

The NHS trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals 
to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer.  The NHS trust recognises the income when it 
receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a 
compensation claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision 
for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.

For all other revenue involving sales, the Trust recognises the income on delivery of the service or goods.  The income is measured at 
the agreed price for that item.

1.7 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. No 
account has been made for the carry over of annual leave on the grounds of materiality.

Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Schemes.  These schemes are unfunded, defined 
benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in 
England and Wales. The schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the 
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as though they were  defined contribution schemes: 
the cost to the NHS body of participating in a scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting 
period.  

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of 
the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the NHS trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the 
method of payment.

1.8 Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured 
at the fair value of the consideration payable.

1.9 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the NHS trust;
● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and either
● the item cost at least £5,000; or
● Collectively, a number of items have a total cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets 
are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and 
are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components 
are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the 
asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
Assets that are held for their service potential and are in use are measured subsequently at their current value in existing use.  Assets 
that were most recently held for their service potential but are surplus are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions 
preventing access to the market at the reporting date.

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially 
different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Current values in existing use are determined as 
follows:
● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use.
● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost, modern equivalent asset basis.
● Plant and Equipment - revaluation based upon the application of relevant inflation indices to gross cost and accumulated depreciation 
on an annual basis.
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HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, 
where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss.  Cost 
includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with IAS 23, borrowing costs.  Assets are revalued and depreciation 
commences when they are brought into use.

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are valued at 
depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful economic lives or low values or both, as this is not considered to be 
materially different from current value in existing use. 

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset 
previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there.  
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged 
to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment 
losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the 
revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised.  Where 
subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of 
the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.

1.10 Intangible assets

Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the trust’s 
business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.  They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the 
cost is at least £5000.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.  Software that is integral to the operation of hardware, for example 
an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not integral to the 
operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.  Expenditure on research is not 
capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred.  Internally-generated assets are recognised if, 
and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use;
● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it;
● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset;
● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential;
● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it; and
● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development

Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the 
criteria above are initially met.  Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the 
period in which it is incurred.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at current value in existing use by reference to an active market, or, where no 
active market exists, at the lower of amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis) and value in use where the asset is 
income generating.  Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development 
costs and technological advances.

1.11 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Freehold land, assets under construction or development, and assets held for sale are not depreciated/amortised.

Otherwise, depreciation or amortisation is charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-
current assets, less any residual value, on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.  The estimated useful life of an asset is 
the period over which the NHS trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the NHS 
trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset itself.  Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, 
with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of 
the lease term and the estimated useful lives.

At each financial year-end, the NHS trust checks whether there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment or intangible non-
current assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is indication of such an impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment annually at the financial year end.
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A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged 
to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment 
losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure.  Where an impairment loss subsequently 
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that 
would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss.  The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to 
the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

1.12 Donated assets
Donated non-current assets are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they will be held for their service potential, or otherwise at 
value on receipt, with a matching credit to income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for purchased assets. 
Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are treated in the same way as for purchased assets.  Deferred income is 
recognised only where conditions attached to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.13 Government grants 
Government grant funded assets are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they will be held for their service potential, or 
otherwise at fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the 
grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

1.14 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use.  This condition is regarded as met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate 
sale in its present condition and management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale 
within one year from the date of classification.  Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount and is recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  On disposal, the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained 
earnings.

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held for sale.  Instead, it is 
retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted.  The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.

1.15 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee.  All other 
leases are classified as operating leases.

The trust as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at 
the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognised in calculating the trust’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Lease incentives are recognised 
initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they 
are operating or finance leases. 

The NHS trust as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the NHS trust’s net investment in the 
leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s net 
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

1.16 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes where the government body controls 
the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement as service concession 
arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12. The NHS trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of 
property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the contract are recorded as operating 
expenses.
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The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation techniques where necessary:
a)      Payment for the fair value of services received;
b)      Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and
c)      Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.

Services received
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’

PFI Asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are measured initially at fair 
value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the 
assets are measured at current value in existing use. 

PFI liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same amount as the initial 
value of the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS 17. 

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability for the period, and is 
charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance cost and to 
repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease. In accordance with 
IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as contingent rent and is expensed as 
incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they meet the NHS 
trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the operator and are measured initially at 
their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract from the 
operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than expected, a 
short-term accrual or prepayment is recognised respectively. 

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is recognised as an 
expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is 
treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to operating income over the 
shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

However, as the initial contract only quoted an overall value of such works per year and did not specify the individual elements of work to 
be undertaken, the Trust is unable to assess whether lifecycle works have been performed to the assumed timetable. Therefore, in 
accordance with the accounting methodology adopted in previous financial years, all costs have been charged to the year's operating 
expenses in line with the original contract.

Assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in the NHS trust’s 
Statement of Financial Position.

1.17 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the weighted average  cost formula.  This is considered to be a 
reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.

1.18 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash 
equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that 
form an integral part of the NHS trust’s cash management.
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1.19 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the NHS trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that the NHS trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  The 
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting 
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rates. 

Early retirement provisions are discounted using HM Treasury’s pension discount rate of positive 0.24% (2015-16: positive 1.37%) in 
real terms.  All other provisions are subject to three separate discount rates according to the expected timing of cashflows from the 
Statement of Financial Position date:
• A short term rate of negative 2.70% (2015-16: negative 1.55%) for expected cash flows up to and including 5 years
• A medium term rate of negative 1.95% (2015-16: negative 1.00%) for expected cash flows over 5 years up to and including 10 years
• A long term rate of negative 0.80% (2015-16: negative 0.80%) for expected cash flows over 10 years.
All percentages are in real terms.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable 
is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 
reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the NHS trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a 
valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features 
to those affected by it.  The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, 
which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity.

1.20 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA, 
which in return settles all clinical negligence claims.  The contribution is charged to expenditure.  Although the NHSLA is administratively 
responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the NHS trust.  The total value of clinical negligence provisions 
carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the trust is disclosed at Note 24. 

1.21 Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme.  Both are risk pooling schemes 
under which the NHS trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs 
of claims arising.  The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to 
operating expenses as and when they become due.

1.22 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)
CRC and similar allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible assets if they are not expected to be realised 
within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets.  They are valued at open market value. As the NHS trust makes emissions, 
a provision is recognised with an offsetting transfer from deferred income.  The provision is settled on surrender of the allowances. The 
asset, provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

1.23 Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS trust, or a present obligation that is not 
recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured sufficiently reliably.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.  

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed where 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.24 Financial assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the NHS trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered.  Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have 
expired or the asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit and loss; held to maturity 
investments; available for sale financial assets, and loans and receivables.  The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the 
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market.  
After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is 
recognised using the effective interest method.

Fair value is determined by valuation techniques.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset.

At the end of the reporting period, the NHS trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value through profit 
and loss’ are impaired.  Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as 
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that have an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  The loss 
is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent 
that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

1.25 Financial liabilities  
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the NHS trust becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received.  Financial liabilities are de-
recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historic cost.  Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans 
from Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost.  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.  Interest is recognised using the 
effective interest method.

1.26 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is 
not recoverable.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed 
assets.  Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.27 Foreign currencies
The NHS trust's functional and presentational currency is sterling.  Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into 
sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions.  At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March.  Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are 
recognised in the trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.28 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the trust has no 
beneficial interest in them.  Details of third party assets are given in Note 33 to the accounts.

1.29 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS trust.  At any time the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and 
require repayments of PDC from, the trust.  PDC is recorded at the value received.  As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under 
contract, it is not treated as an equity financial instrument.

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as public dividend capital 
dividend.  The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets 
less liabilities (except for donated assets and cash balances with the Government Banking Service).  The average carrying amount of 
assets is calculated as a simple average of opening and closing relevant net assets.

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is 
calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus 
calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)

1.30 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or 
passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise.  They are therefore subject to special control procedures 
compared with the generality of payments.  They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are 
handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses 
which would have been made good through insurance cover had the NHS trust not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums 
then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.31 Subsidiaries
Material entities over which the NHS trust has the power to exercise control are classified as subsidiaries and are consolidated. The 
NHS trust has control when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns through its power over another entity. The income and 
expenses; gains and losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated in full into the appropriate 
financial statement lines.  Appropriate adjustments are made on consolidation where the subsidiary’s accounting policies are not aligned 
with the NHS trust or where the subsidiary’s accounting date is not co-terminus.

Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.

From 2013-14, the Trust was obliged to consider the consolidation of the results of Wye Valley NHS Trust Charitable Funds over which it 
considers it has the power to exercise control in accordance with IFRS10 requirements.  However, the Trust has not consolidated 
Charitable Funds in to the accounts on the basis of materiality - see Note 1.4.

1.32 Associates
Material entities over which the NHS trust has the power to exercise significant influence so as to obtain economic or other benefits are 
classified as associates and are recognised in the NHS trust’s accounts using the equity method.  The investment is recognised initially 
at cost and is adjusted subsequently to reflect the NHS trust share of the entity’s profit/loss and other gains/losses.  It is also reduced 
when any distribution is received by the NHS trust from the entity.

Associates that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’

1.33 Joint arrangements
Not relevant for this Trust

1.34 Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is incurred, except insofar as development 
expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured.  Expenditure so deferred is 
limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the SOCI on a systematic basis over the period expected to 
benefit from the project. It should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as 
depreciation, on a quarterly basis.

1.35 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The HM Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2016-17. These standards are still 
subject to HM Treasury FReM interpretation, with IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 being for implementation in 2018-19, and the government 
implementation date for IFRS 16 still subject to HM Treasury consideration.
● IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but not yet adopted 
by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted
● IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers  - Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, 
but not yet adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted
● IFRS 16 Leases – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet adopted by the FReM: 
early adoption is not therefore permitted.

1.36 Gifts
Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the expectation of any return. Gifts include all transactions 
economically equivalent to free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its expected useful life, and the sale or 
lease of assets at below market value.
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2. Pooled Budgets

3. Operating segments

Those customers who account for income of 10% or more of the Trust's total are as follows:

2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16
£000 £000 % of total % of total

Bodies covered by the NHS in England
Herefordshire CCG   119,757   112,855 67.4% 63.4%

Healthcare bodies covered by the Welsh Assembly Government
None

4. Income generation activities

Summary Table - aggregate of all schemes 2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Income 0 0
Full cost 0 0
Surplus/(deficit) 0 0

5. Revenue from patient care activities
2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

NHS Trusts 0 0
NHS England 12,130 15,436
Clinical Commissioning Groups 124,969 121,383
Foundation Trusts 0 0
Department of Health 0 0
NHS Other (including Public Health England and Prop Co) 17,474 15,412
Additional income for delivery of healthcare services 0 2,867
Non-NHS: 
      Local Authorities 3,542 2,741
      Private patients 410 830
      Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 14 3
      Injury costs recovery 491 0
      Other Non-NHS patient care income 81 408
Total Revenue from patient care activities 159,111 159,080 

Injury cost recovery income is subject to a provision for impairment of receivables of 22.94% to reflect expected rates of recovery.
NHS Other income consists of income from Welsh NHS bodies of £17,474k.  In 2015/16 £15,141k of income from Welsh NHS bodies was 
reported against the Non-NHS Other line.

The Trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in patient care.  The following provides 
details of income generation activities 

Not relevant for trust

The income from external sources for the Trust is £177,567k and further analysis is provided within Notes 5 (Revenue from Patient Care 
activities) and 6 (Other Operating Revenue).

The Trust reports its performance as a single business segment which relates to the provision of healthcare.
Under IFRS 8 (Operating Segments), the Trust has determined that, within its internal Business Unit management structure, one unit has 
similar charactaristics to another and can, therefore, be aggregated under the standard.  This particularly relates to the similarities of services 
offered by each area and the patient population that they serve.  Overall, each area's main objective is the delivery of acute health care to 
NHS patients.
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6. Other operating revenue
2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0
Patient transport services 0 0
Education, training and research 4,589 4,339
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure - NHS 0 0
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure -non- NHS 0 0
Receipt of charitable donations for capital acquisitions 256 667
Support from DH for mergers 0 0
Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions 0 0
Non-patient care services to other bodies 3,366 3,478
Sustainability & Transformation Fund Income 0
Income generation (Other fees and charges) 962 731
Rental revenue from finance leases 0 0
Rental revenue from operating leases 0 0
Other revenue 9,283 9,751
Total Other Operating Revenue 18,456 18,966

Total operating revenue 177,567 178,046

7. Overseas Visitors Disclosure
2016-17 2015-16

£000s £000s

Income recognised during 2016-17 (invoiced amounts and accruals) 14 3
Cash payments received in-year (re receivables at 31 March 2016) 0 0
Cash payments received in-year (iro invoices issued 2016-17) 17 3
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (re receivables at 31 March 2016) 0 0
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (iro invoices issued 2016-17) 0 0
Amounts written off in-year (irrespective of year of recognition) 0 0

Other income includes cross charges and drug recharges to NHS Herefordshire (£3,912k; 2015/16 £5,021k), Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust for chemotherapy treatment (£3,460k; 2015/16 £3,184k), Powys LHB for clinics using the Trust's clinical staff (£912k; 
2015/16 £999k), 2Gether Recharges, (£364k; 2015/16 £409k) and other recharges (£635k; 2015/16 £138k).  
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8. Operating expenses
2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Services from other NHS Trusts 333 234
Services from CCGs/NHS England 0 0
Services from other NHS bodies 624 200
Services from NHS Foundation Trusts 374 428
Total Services from NHS bodies* 1,331 862
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 2,077 507
Purchase of Social Care 0 0
Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors 55 52
Supplies and services - clinical 39,079 36,038
Supplies and services - general 2,484 2,752
Consultancy services 247 74
Establishment 4,455 2,221
Transport 641 445
Service charges - ON-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements 8,309 9,453
Service charges - On-SOFP LIFT contracts 0 0
Total charges - Off-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements 0 0
Total charges - Off-SOFP LIFT contracts 0 0
Business rates paid to local authorities 722 0
Premises 4,127 5,976
Hospitality 0 0
Insurance 101 0
Legal Fees 230 243
Impairments and Reversals of Receivables 25 56
Inventories write down 68 1
Depreciation 4,022 3,538
Amortisation 2 11
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment (64) (462)
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets 10 0
Impairments and reversals of financial assets [by class] 0 0
Impairments and reversals of non current assets held for sale 0 0
Internal Audit Fees 76 0
Audit fees 91 92
Other auditor's remuneration [detail] 12 0
Clinical negligence 2,774 2,285
Research and development (excluding staff costs) 10 0
Education and Training 424 444
Change in Discount Rate 145 30
Capital Grants in Kind 0 0
Other 3,188 3,607
Total Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits) 74,641 68,225

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits excluding Board members 132,533 122,787
Board members 1,049 984
Total Employee Benefits 133,582 123,771

Total Operating Expenses 208,223 191,996

*Services from NHS bodies does not include expenditure which falls into a category below
Total Other costs include amounts relating to patients travel, £1,242k; ICT services, £882k; professional fees, £695k; losses and special 
payments, £266k and Other, £103k.
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9. Operating Leases

9.1. Wye Valley NHS Trust as lessee
2016-17

Land Buildings Other Total 2015-16
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 910 724
Contingent rents 0 0
Sub-lease payments 0 0
Total 910 724
Payable:
No later than one year 0 0 884 884 743
Between one and five years 0 0 1,363 1,363 1,177
After five years 0 0 61 61 0
Total 0 0 2,308 2,308 1,920

Total future sublease payments expected to be received: 0 0

9.2. Wye Valley NHS Trust as lessor
The Trust does not operate as a lessor

The leases held include £667k in lease payments for a number of different items of medical equipment and £244K for the lease of vehicles.
Independent advice is taken prior to the agreement of all new leases to establish that the lease contract entered in to is an operating lease as 
defined by principles contained within IFRS.  The contingent rental in respect of the leases is governed by the individual lease agreement 
which sets out the lease term, annual charge and arrangements at the end of the lease period.

The Trust  operate leasing arrangements relating to some items of medical equipment and vehicles.
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10. Employee benefits 

10.1. Employee benefits
2016-17 2015-16

Total Total
£000s £000s

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure
Salaries and wages 112,997 105,687 
Social security costs 9,300 7,230 
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division 11,285 10,854 
Other pension costs 0 0
Termination benefits 0 0
Total employee benefits 133,582 123,771 

Employee costs capitalised 0 0
Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 133,582 123,771 

10.2. Retirements due to ill-health
2016-17 2015-16
Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 1 3

£000s £000s

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year 71 72

10.3. Pension costs

a) Accounting valuation

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension 
Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts.  These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually.  
Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account their recent 
demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012. The 
Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM 
Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as deemed 
appropriate. 

The next actuarial valuation is to be carried out as at 31 March 2016. This will set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 and will 
consider the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap. There are provisions in the Public Service Pension Act 2013 to adjust 
member benefits or contribution rates if the cost of the Scheme changes by more than 2% of pay. Subject to this ‘employer cost cap’ 
assessment, any required revisions to member benefits or contribution rates will be determined by the Secretary of State for Health after 
consultation with the relevant stakeholders.

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes.  Details of the benefits payable and rules of the 
Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover 
NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not 
designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each 
scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal 
to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined at 
the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with 
approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the end of 
the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and 
financial data for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The 
valuation of scheme liability as at 31 March 2017, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2016, updated to 31 March 2017 with summary global 
member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, 
and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.
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11. Better Payment Practice Code

11.1. Measure of compliance
2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16
Number £000s Number £000s

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 69,345 131,161 50,732 95,257
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 23,850 80,090 27,588 67,557
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 34.39% 61.06% 54.38% 70.92%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 1,115 6,794 1,081 5,553
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 255 3,205 650 3,745
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target 22.87% 47.17% 60.13% 67.44%

12. Investment Revenue
2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Interest revenue
Bank interest 22 18

Total investment revenue 22 18

13. Finance Costs
2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Interest
   Interest on loans and overdrafts 1,128 371
   Interest on obligations under finance leases 0 0
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:
    - main finance cost 1,850 1,948
    - contingent finance cost 3,446 3,289
Interest on obligations under LIFT contracts:
    - main finance cost 0 0
    - contingent finance cost 0 0
Interest on late payment of commercial debt 0 0
Total interest expense 6,424 5,608
Other finance costs 0 0
Provisions - unwinding of discount 114 0
Total  6,538 5,608

14. Finance Costs

14.1. Other auditor remuneration
2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:
1. Examination of accounts of WVT Charitable Fund 1 1
2. Quality Audit 12 12
Total 13 13

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, 
whichever is later.
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15.1. Property, plant and equipment

2016-17

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets 
under 

construction 
& payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2016 6,148 76,862 760 4,382 9,282 41 2,765 495 100,735
Additions of Assets Under Construction 0 0 0 292 0 0 0 0 292
Additions Purchased 0 596 35 0 981 0 0 9 1,621
Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations & Government Grants 0 0 0 0 256 0 0 0 256
Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications 0 440 102 (573) (10) 0 158 4 121
Reclassification of asset from tangible to intangible 0 0 0 (2,480) 0 0 0 0 (2,480)
Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation 0 3,462 94 0 83 0 0 5 3,644
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 64 0 0 0 0 0 0 64
Impairments/reversals charged to reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2017 6,148 81,424 991 1,621 10,592 41 2,923 513 104,253

Depreciation
At 1 April 2016 0 4,351 65 0 5,037 41 1,938 189 11,621
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassification of asset from tangible to intangible 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairment/reversals charged to reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Charged During the Year 0 2,513 141 0 1,038 0 293 37 4,022
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2017 0 6,864 206 0 6,075 41 2,231 226 15,643
Net Book Value at 31 March 2017 6,148 74,560 785 1,621 4,517 0 692 287 88,610

Asset financing:
Owned - Purchased 6,148 20,182 785 1,621 3,181 0 692 287 32,896
Owned - Donated 0 2,213 0 0 1,202 0 0 0 3,415
Owned - Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 134 0 0 0 134
On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 52,165 0 0 0 0 0 0 52,165
PFI residual interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total at 31 March 2017 6,148 74,560 785 1,621 4,517 0 692 287 88,610
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Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Land Buildings Dwellings Assets 
under 
construction 
& payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At 1 April 2016 2,082 15,988 587 0 1,895 7 3 37 20,599
Movements (specify) 0 3,462 94 0 83 0 0 5 3,644
At 31 March 2017 2,082 19,450 681 0 1,978 7 3 42 24,243

Additions to Assets Under Construction in 2016-17

Land 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Buildings excl Dwellings 0 0 0 151 0 0 0 0
Dwellings 0 0 0 141 0 0 0 0
Plant & Machinery 0 0 0 0
Intangible Assets 3,932 0 0 0 0
Balance as at YTD 0 0 0 4,224 0 0 0 0

The information contained above on the value of tangible assets was based on a desktop valuation exercise carried out on behalf of the Trust by the Valuation Office Agency.  Where buildings had been subject to extensive 
modification in-year or were new buildings, the VoA carried out an on-site valuation.

Buildings have been revalued by a net £3,556k in 2016/17.  This was made up of revaluations of £3,925k offset by asset impairments of £369k.  Of the asset revaluation, £72k is accounted for within income and expenditure 
with the balance going against reserves.
The reclassification from tangible to intangible assets relates to the transfer of asset under construction in relation to the development of the Electronic Patient Record IT system from tangible to intangible assets.
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15.2. Property, plant and equipment prior-year

2015-16

Land Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Dwellings Assets 
under 

construction 
& payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery

Transport 
equipment

Information 
technology

Furniture & 
fittings

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2015 6,148 64,988 650 457 8,261 41 2,621 485 83,651
Additions of Assets Under Construction 0 0 0 4,113 0 0 0 0 4,113
Additions Purchased 0 4,157 0 0 976 0 144 0 5,277
Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. Physical Assets) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations & Government Grants 0 93 0 0 574 0 0 0 667
Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications 0 115 0 (115) 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications as Held for Sale and Reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (990) 0 0 0 (990)
Revaluation 0 7,034 110 0 461 0 0 10 7,615
Impairment/reversals charged to reserves 0 535 0 (73) 0 0 0 0 462
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 (60) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (60)
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2016 6,148 76,862 760 4,382 9,282 41 2,765 495 100,735

Depreciation
At 1 April 2015 0 2,181 32 0 4,760 32 1,538 135 8,678
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications as Held for Sale and Reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals other than for sale 0 0 0 0 (990) 0 0 0 (990)
Revaluation 0 0 0 0 392 0 0 3 395
Impairment/reversals charged to reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Charged During the Year 0 2,170 33 0 875 9 400 51 3,538
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2016 0 4,351 65 0 5,037 41 1,938 189 11,621
Net Book Value at 31 March 2016 6,148 72,511 695 4,382 4,245 0 827 306 89,114

Asset financing:
Owned - Purchased 6,148 16,568 695 4,304 3,208 0 827 306 32,056
Owned - Donated 0 2,080 0 78 1,037 0 0 0 3,195
Owned - Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
On-SOFP PFI contracts 0 53,863 0 0 0 0 0 0 53,863
PFI residual interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total at 31 March 2016 6,148 72,511 695 4,382 4,245 0 827 306 89,114
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15.3. (cont). Property, plant and equipment

Charitable donations during the year

Land and Buildings

Asset lives
The remaining lives on those assets that have not been fully written down are as outlined below:

Intangible Assets
Software and Licences 1 to 4 Years (2015/16 1 to 7 years)

Property, Plant & Equipment
Buildings (excl dwellings) 4 to 68 years  (2015/16: 5 to 49 years)
Dwellings 20 to 20 years  (2015/16: 21 to 21 years)
Plant & Machinery 1 to 15 years  (2015/16: 3 to 15 years)
Transport equipment 0 to 1 year  (2015/16: 1 to 1 year)
Information Technology 1 to 7 years  (2015/16: 5 to 10 years)
Furniture & Fittings 1 to 22 years  (2015/16: 3 to 25 years)

Impact of the 2017 estate valuation
As in previous years, an end of year valuation was provided at 31 March 2017 to establish the fair value of property assets at the balance 
The revaluation resulted in an increase in asset values associated with Trust buildings.  Buildings value has been revalued by a net £3,556k in 
2016/17.  This was made up of revaluations of £3,925k offset by specific asset impairments of £369k.

In general, following the valuation of the Trust's estate, asset lives have remained broadly consistent with those reported previously.

During the year, donations of £392k for medical equipment, £30k for buildings and £42k for other quuipment were received from the Wye 
Valley NHS Trust Charitable Funds.

The Trust's estate was valued as at 31 March 2017 by Mr Neil Rayner BSc (Hons) MSc DIC MRICS, Principal Surveyor at the District 

The valuations took the form of an asset valuation report as at 31 March 2017. The valuation took the form of a desk top based update to the 
full valuation carried out as at 31 March 2014 for which an inpsection of the properties and sites had been undertaken as part of the valuation 
process. The valuations have been undertaken having regard to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applied to the United 
Kingdom public sector and in accordance with HM Treasury guidance, International Valuation Standards and the requirements of the Royal 
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Professional Standards 2014 UK edition.

The fair value of land and buildings is usually determined from market-based evidence by appraisal undertaken by professionally qualified 
valuers within DVS.

The Department of Health has indicated that, for operational NHS assets, it requires fair value to be based on the Market Value subject to the 
assumption that the property is sold as part of the continuing enterprise in occupation.
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16. Intangible non-current assets

16.1. Intangible non-current assets

2016-17

IT - in-house 
& 3rd party 

software

Computer 
Licenses

Licenses 
and 

Trademarks

Patents Develop-
ment 

Expenditure - 
Internally 
Generated

Intangible 
Assets 
Under 

Construction

Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At 1 April 2016 125 497 0 0 0 0 622
Additions of Assets Under Construction 0 0 0 0 0 3,932 3,932
Additions Purchased 0 13 0 0 0 0 13
Additions Internally Generated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations and Government Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications (115) (6) 0 0 0 0 (121)
Reclassification of asset from tangible to intangible 0 0 0 0 0 2,480 2,480
Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses (10) 0 0 0 0 0 (10)
Impairments/reversals charged to reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2017 0 504 0 0 0 6,412 6,916

Amortisation
At 1 April 2016 0 457 0 0 0 0 457
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassification of asset from tangible to intangible 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairment/reversals charged to reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Charged During the Year 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2017 0 459 0 0 0 0 459
Net Book Value at 31 March 2017 0 45 0 0 0 6,412 6,457

Revaluation reserve balance for intangible non-current assets
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 1 April 2016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Movements (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption 

Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption 
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16.2. Intangible non-current assets prior year

2015-16

IT - in-house 
& 3rd party 

software
Computer 
Licenses

Licenses and 
Trademarks Patents 

Development 
Expenditure - 

Internally 
Generated

Intangible 
Assets Under 
Construction Total 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2015 125 497 0 0 0 0 622
Additions - purchased 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions - internally generated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions - donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions - government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments/reversals charged to reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2016 125 497 0 0 0 0 622

Amortisation
At 1 April 2015 0 446 0 0 0 0 446
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassified as held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Upward revaluation/positive indexation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments/reversals charged to reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Charged during the year 0 11 0 0 0 0 11
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2016 0 457 0 0 0 0 457

Net book value at 31 March 2016 125 40 0 0 0 0 165

16.3. Intangible non-current assets

Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption 

Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption 

The remaining lives of those assets that have not already been fully written down are between 1 and 6 years (2015/16: 2 years); the asset being depreciated in a straight line over its 
useful life.

All intangible assets are held at cost as a proxy for fair value and are not subject to annual indexation adjustments.

The Trust only holds purchased software and licences  plus in-house IT developments as intangible assets and has no such assets that have been internally generated.  The Trust is 
presently investing in the development of an electronic patient record system and this is reflected in the value of assets under construction within Table 16.1.

Page 27



75

Wye Valley NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17

17. Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2016-17
2016-17

Total
£000s

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCI
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0
Over-specification of assets 0
Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0
Loss as a result of catastrophe 0
Other (64)
Changes in market price 0
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure (64)

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed to SoCI (64)

Intangible assets impairments and reversals charged to SoCI
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0
Over-specification of assets 0
Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0
Loss as a result of catastrophe 0
Other 10
Changes in market price 0
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 10

Total Impairments of Intangibles charged to SoCI 10

Financial Assets charged to SoCI
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0
Other 0
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0

Total Impairments of Financial Assets charged to SoCI 0

Non-current assets held for sale - impairments and reversals charged to SoCI.
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0
Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0
Loss as a result of catastrophe 0
Other 0
Changes in market price 0
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure 0

Total impairments of non-current assets held for sale charged to SoCI 0

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - DEL 0
Total Impairments charged to SoCI - AME (54)
Overall Total Impairments 0

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above
PPE  - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL 0
Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL 0
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17. Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2016-17
Property 
Plant and 

Equipment

Intangible 
Assets

Financial 
Assets

Non-
Current 
Assets 
Held for 

Sale Total
£000s

Impairments and reversals taken to SoCI
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0 0 0 0
Over-specification of assets 0 0 0 0 0
Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0 0 0 0
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit 0 0 0 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0 0 0 0
Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0 0 0 0
Other (64) 10 0 0 (54)
Changes in market price 0 0 0 0 0
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure (64) 10 0 0 (54)

(64) 10 0 0 (54)

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above £000s
PPE  - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL 0
Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL 0

18. Commitments

18.1. Capital commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these financial statements:
31 March 

2017
31 March 

2016
£000s £000s

Property, plant and equipment 151 1,678
Intangible assets 1,786 0
Total 1,937 1,678

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed 

The main element of capital commitments relate to the Electronic Patient Record project.  This was identified as PPE in 2015/16 but 
reclassified as an intangible asset during 2016/17.
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19. Inventories
Drugs Consuma

bles
Work in 

Progress
Energy Loan 

Equipme
nt

Other

Total

Of which 
held at 
NRV

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2016 1,017 1,889 0 29 0 0 2,935 0
Additions 16,648 6,763 0 16 0 0 23,427 0

(16,689) (6,100) 0 (11) 0 0 (22,800) 0

0 (68) 0 0 0 0 (68) 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2017 976 2,484 0 34 0 0 3,494 0

The Trust does not hold any non-current inventories.

20.1. Trade and other receivables

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS receivables - revenue 5,428 4,484 0 0
NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0
NHS prepayments and accrued income 740 1,005 0 0
Non-NHS receivables - revenue 1,237 613 0 0
Non-NHS receivables - capital 0 0 0 0
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 1,220 1,139 0 0
PDC Dividend prepaid to DH 0 0 0 0
Provision for the impairment of receivables (309) (284) 0 0
VAT 372 327 0 0

0 0 0 0
Interest receivables 1 0 0 0
Finance lease receivables 0 0 0 0
Operating lease receivables 0 0 0 0
Other receivables 0 462 176 0
Total 8,689 7,746 176 0

Total current and non current 8,865 7,746

Included in NHS receivables are prepaid pension contributions: 0

The Trust has no material concern about the credit quality of other debtors.

20.2. Receivables past their due date but not impaired
31 March 

2017
31 March 

2016
£000s £000s

By up to three months 1,450 688
By three to six months 560 472
By more than six months 569 572
Total 2,579 1,732

Current/non-current part of PFI and other PPP arrangements prepayments and accrued 
income excluding PFI lifecycle

Current Non-current

The great majority of trade is with NHS clinical commissioning groups and NHS England.  As NHS bodies are funded by Government to buy NHS 
patient care services no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

Inventories recognised as an expense in the 
period

Write-down of inventories (including losses)
Reversal of write-down previously taken to 
SOCI

Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector 
Bodies under Absorption Accounting

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on 
authorisation as FT
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20.3. Provision for impairment of receivables
£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2016 (284) (305)
Amount written off during the year 0 77
Amount recovered during the year 0 0
(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired (25) (56)

0 0
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2017 (309) (284)

This applies to non-NHS debts only and also excludes Welsh NHS bodies.

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 March 

2017
31 March 

2016
£000s £000s

Opening balance 3,610 3,900
Net change in year (1,045) (290)
Closing balance 2,565 3,610

Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service 2,513 3,602
Commercial banks 46 2
Cash in hand 6 6
Liquid deposits with NLF 0 0
Current investments 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 2,565 3,610
Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service 0 0
Bank overdraft - Commercial banks 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows 2,565 3,610

Third Party Assets - Bank balance (not included above) 0 0
Third Party Assets - Monies on deposit 0 0

Although the Trust employs the services of a debt collection agency, the impairment was calculated whilst being mindful of whether such 
outstanding amounts were uneconomic to recover.  Furthermore, where extenuating circumstances existed which could impact on successful 
recovery, these were considered on a case by case basis.

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT
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22. Trade and other payables

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000s £000s £000s £000s

NHS payables - revenue 2,089 1,687 0 0
NHS payables - capital 87 0 0 0
NHS accruals and deferred income 0 0 0 0
Non-NHS payables - revenue 5,255 8,384 0 0
Non-NHS payables - capital 1,481 1,710 0 0
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 6,436 5,942 0 0
Social security costs 1,323 1,085
PDC Dividend payable to DH 0 0
Accrued Interest on DH Loans 320 100
VAT 10 0 0 0
Tax 1,040 1,058
Payments received on account 393 0 0 0
Other 2,096 2,154 0 134
Total 20,530 22,120 0 134

Total payables (current and non-current) 20,530 22,254

Included above:
To buy out the liability for early retirements over 5 years 0 0
Number of cases involved (number) 0 0
Outstanding pension contributions at the year end 1,568 1,540

Current Non-current
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23. Borrowings

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service 0 0
Bank overdraft - commercial banks 0 0
Loans from Department of Health 1,967 1,285 66,551 23,082
Loans from other entities 0 0 0 0
PFI liabilities - main liability 3,116 2,936 48,519 51,635
LIFT liabilities - main liability 0 0 0 0
Finance lease liabilities 64 0 70 0
Other (describe) 0 0 0 0
Total 5,147 4,221 115,140 74,717

Total other liabilities (current and non-current) 120,287 78,938

Borrowings / Loans - repayment of principal falling due in:
31 March 2017

DH Other Total
£000s £000s £000s

0-1 Years 1,967 3,180 5,147
1 - 2 Years 1,967 3,352 5,319
2 - 5 Years 5,078 11,006 16,084
Over 5 Years 59,506 34,231 93,737
TOTAL 68,518 51,769 120,287

PFI liabilities (£51,635k outstanding at 31 March 2017)

Radiology MES liabilities (£134k outstanding at 31 March 2017)

Current Non-current

Since the implementation of IFRS, the value of the outstanding liabilities payable to the Trust's PFI partner appear on the Trust's balance sheet. 
This value is written down over the life of the contract term, in this case 30 years.  The initial contract was signed in April 1999 and the liability will 
be fully discharged by March 2029.The value of PFI liabilities has been reviewed to bring the calculation in line with the Department of Health PFI 
financial model.

In 2012/13, the Trust agreed a contract with a Managed Equipment Service (MES) provider to replace its existing MRI machine and partially 
refurbish the Radiology Department.  Under IFRS, the contract has been broken down into its constituent parts for accounting purposes.  Although 
the former element of the contract has been accounted for as an operating lease, the works element (as in the case of the PFI scheme) appears on 
the organisation's balance sheet.  The value is written down over the contract term of 7 years and will be fully discharged by November 2018. At 
the balance sheet date, the principal outstanding was £134k (2015/16 £200k).

Loans from the Department of 
Health Loan Date

Capital or 
Revenue

Loan 
duration Repayment Method Interest rate

Repayment 
date

Principal O/S 
at 31 Mar 17

£000

CIL/10-11/RLQ/1 Mar-09 Capital 10 Years Equal Instalments 2.69% Mar-19 1,365
CIL/08-09/RLQ/1 Sep-10 Capital 10 Years Equal Instalments 2.02% Sep-20 160
ITFF/ISCIL/RLQ/2015-04-07/A Aug-15 Capital 15 Years Equal Instalments 1.91% May-30 4,623
ITFF/ISCIL/RLQ/2015-06-23/A Nov-15 Capital 7 Years Equal Instalments 1.04% Aug-22 6,351
Total capital loans 12,499

DHPF/ISRWF/RLQ/2015-03-20/A Apr-15 Revenue 5 Years Termination date 3.50% Apr-20 18,479
DHPF/ISWBL/RLQ/2015-12-01/A Dec-15 Revenue 3 years Termination date 1.50% Dec-18 14,333
DHPF/ISUCL/RLQ/2016-10-04/A Oct-16 Revenue 3 Years Termination date 3.50% Oct-19 1,645
DHPF/ISUCL/RLQ/2016-11-04/A Nov-16 Revenue 3 Years Termination date 3.50% Nov-19 9,643
DHPF/ISUCL/RLQ/2016-12-02/A Dec-16 Revenue 3 Years Termination date 3.50% Dec-19 2,139
DHPF/ISUCL/RLQ/2017-01-06/A Jan-17 Revenue 3 Years Termination date 3.50% Jan-20 3,355
DHPF/ISUCL/RLQ/2017-02-03/A Feb-17 Revenue 3 Years Termination date 3.50% Feb-20 3,465
DHPF/ISUCL/RLQ/2017-03-03/A Mar-17 Revenue 3 Years Termination date 3.50% Mar-20 2,960
Total revenue loans 56,019

Total loans 68,518
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24. Provisions
Comprising:

Total

Early 
Departure 

Costs

Legal Claims Restructuring Continuing 
Care

Equal Pay 
(incl. Agenda 
for Change

Other Redundancy

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 2016 738 187 551 0 0 0 0 0
Arising during the year 110 23 87 0 0 0 0 0
Utilised during the year (42) (12) (30) 0 0 0 0 0
Reversed unused (3) 0 (3) 0 0 0 0 0
Unwinding of discount 114 22 92 0 0 0 0 0
Change in discount rate 145 29 116 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trusts on being authorised as FT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers (to)/from other public sector bodies under absorption accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2017 1,062 249 813 0 0 0 0 0

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:
No Later than One Year 42 12 30 0 0 0 0 0
Later than One Year and not later than Five Years 165 45 120 0 0 0 0 0
Later than Five Years 855 192 663 0 0 0 0 0

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:
As at 31 March 2017 44,070
As at 31 March 2016 41,648

25. Contingencies
31 March 

2017
31 March 

2016
£000s £000s

Contingent liabilities
NHS Litigation Authority legal claims 0 0
Employment Tribunal and other employee related litigation 0 0
Redundancy 0 0
Other 0 0
Net value of contingent liabilities 0 0

Contingent assets
Contingent assets 0 0
Net value of contingent assets 0 0

Legal claims relate to permanent injury benefit for three former employees which is paid quarterly until death and employer' liability claims which are currently being processed by the Trust's insurers.  The provision for 
2016/17 has been revised using updated actuarial life tables provided by the Office for National Statistics.  The discount rate applicable to these and pensions provisions has been increased to 0.24% in 2016/17 (2015/16 
1.37%) by HM Treasury.
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26. PFI and LIFT - additional information

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts

2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Total charge to operating expenses in year - Off SoFP PFI 0 0
Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to operating expenses in year 8,309 9,453
Total 8,309 9,453

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP PFI and the service element of on SOFP PFI 2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

No Later than One Year 7,356 7,103
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 30,835 30,152
Later than Five Years 61,909 69,947
Total 100,100 107,202

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due 2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

No Later than One Year 4,866 4,785
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 20,172 19,902
Later than Five Years 39,114 44,250
Subtotal 64,152 68,937
Less: Interest Element (12,517) (14,366)
Total 51,635 54,571

Payments committed to in respect of all off SOFP PFI and the lifecycle element of on SOFP PFI 2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

No Later than One Year 1,565 1,753
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 5,584 5,928
Later than Five Years 2,319 3,540
Total 9,468 11,221

Payments committed to in respect of all off SOFP PFI and the interest element of on SOFP PFI 2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

No Later than One Year 1,750 1,849
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 5,884 6,343
Later than Five Years 4,883 6,174
Total 12,517 14,366

Present Value Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due 2016-17 2015-16
Analysed by when PFI payments are due £000s £000s
No Later than One Year 3,116 2,936
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years 14,288 13,559
Later than Five Years 34,231 38,076
Total 51,635 54,571

Number of on SOFP PFI Contracts
Total Number of on PFI contracts 1
Number of on PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m 0

Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI

The PFI project involved the redevelopment of the site at Hereford County Hospital to enable the Trust to integrate its existing operations on that one 
site, thus ensuring that the previous sites at the General Hospital and Victoria Eye Hospital became surplus to requirements.  The 30 year contract saw 
the Trust's PFI partner become responsible for the provision of design, construction, insurance, ongoing maintenance and hotel services at the County 
Hospital.  Furthermore, the contract replaced some major equipment within the Radiology department.

The contract start date of the scheme was 16 April 1999 with the end of the concession period being 15 April 2029.  At this date, the assets revert to the 
ownership of the Trust.

Under the terms of the Trust's PFI contract, its PFI partner has leased, with full title guarantee, the land at Hereford County Hospital over a period of 125 
years at peppercorn rent.  However, the lease will automatically cease on expiry of the PFI agreement.

Under IFRIC 12, the asset is treated as an asset of the Trust.  The substance of the contract is that the Trust has a finance lease and payments 
comprise two elements – imputed finance lease charges and service charges.  Both elements are shown in the tables below.
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27. Impact of IFRS treatment - current year

Income Expenditure Income Expenditure
The information below is required by the Department of Health for budget reconciliation purposes £000s £000s £000s £000s

Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 (e.g PFI / LIFT)
Depreciation charges 1,400 1,371
Interest Expense 5,296 5,237
Impairment charge - AME 0 0
Impairment charge - DEL 0 0
Other Expenditure - service charge and lifecycle costs 9,773 9,453
Revenue Receivable from subleasing 0 0
Impact on PDC dividend payable 0 0
Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12) 0 16,469 0 16,061
Revenue consequences of PFI / LIFT schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net of any sublease revenue) 18,084 17,647
Net IFRS change (IFRIC12) (1,615) (1,586)

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12
Capital expenditure 2016/17 0 0
UK GAAP capital expenditure 2016/17 (Reversionary Interest) 0 1,572

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16
Income/     

Expenditure 
IFRIC 12      

YTD

Income/     
Expenditure 

ESA 10         
YTD

Income/     
Expenditure 

IFRIC 12      
YTD

Income/     
Expenditure 

ESA 10         
YTD

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Revenue costs of IFRS12 compared with ESA10
Depreciation charges 1,400 1,371
Interest Expense 5,296 5,237
Impairment charge - AME 0 0
Impairment charge - DEL 0 0
Other Expenditure
Service Charge 8,020 18,084 7,722 17,647
Contingent Rent 0 0
Lifecycle 1,753 1,731
Impact on PDC Dividend Payable 0 0
Total Revenue Cost under IFRIC12 vs ESA10 16,469 18,084 16,061 17,647
Revenue Receivable from subleasing 0 0 0 0
Net Revenue Cost/(income) under IFRIC12 vs ESA10 16,469 18,084 16,061 17,647

2015-162016-17

The net IFRS change calculated is reflected in the SoCI under financial performance for the year.  However, where the adjustment is negative a nil value is shown, thus the 2016/17 
and 2015/16  adjustments are shown as nil values.
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28. Financial Instruments

28.1. Financial risk management

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

28.2. Financial Assets
At ‘fair value 

through 
profit and 

loss’

Loans and 
receivables

Available for 
sale

Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0
Receivables - NHS 0 5,428 0 5,428
Receivables - non-NHS 0 1,237 0 1,237
Cash at bank and in hand 0 2,565 0 2,565
Other financial assets 0 0 0 0
Total at 31 March 2017 0 9,230 0 9,230

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0
Receivables - NHS 0 4,493 0 4,493
Receivables - non-NHS 0 1,092 0 1,092
Cash at bank and in hand 0 3,610 0 3,610
Other financial assets 0 0 0 0
Total at 31 March 2016 0 9,195 0 9,195

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks 
a body faces in undertaking its activities.  Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the Trust has with its NHS commissioners and the 
way those commissioners are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.  Also financial instruments 
play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly 
apply.  The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational 
activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.

The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the Trust’s standing 
financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors.  All treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust’s internal auditors.

The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based.  The 
Trust has no overseas operations.  The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS Improvement.  The borrowings are for 1 – 25 
years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan.  The Trust 
therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the Trust’s revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk.  The 
maximum exposures as at 31 March 2017 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

The Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with clinical commissioning groups, which are financed from resources voted annually by 
Parliament .  The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit.  The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to 
significant liquidity risks.

The Trust may also borrow from government for revenue financing subject to approval by NHS Improvement.  Interest rates are confirmed by the 
Department of Health (the lender) at the pointthe borrowing is undertaken.
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28.3. Financial Liabilities
At ‘fair value 

through 
profit and 

loss’

Other Total 

£000s £000s £000s

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0
NHS payables 0 2,176 2,176
Non-NHS payables 0 11,205 11,205
Other borrowings 0 68,518 68,518
PFI & finance lease obligations 0 51,635 51,635
Other financial liabilities 0 134 134
Total at 31 March 2017 0 133,668 133,668

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0
NHS payables 0 1,573 1,573
Non-NHS payables 0 10,208 10,208
Other borrowings 0 24,367 24,367
PFI & finance lease obligations 0 54,571 54,571
Other financial liabilities 0 134 134
Total at 31 March 2016 0 90,853 90,853

29. Events after the end of the reporting period

30. Related party transactions

NHS England
NHS Blood and Transplant Authority
NHS Litigation Authority
NHS Pensions Scheme
Herefordshire CCG
South Worcestershire CCG
Gloucestershire CCG
Shropshire CCG
Telford and Wrekin CCG
Health Education England
Public Health England
NHS Property Services
Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust
Sandwell and West Birmingham NHS Trust
Shropshire and Community NHS Trust
South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust
Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

The summary financial statements of the Wye Valley NHS Trust Charitable Funds are available separately.

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions (within the limits defined above) with other government departments and other central 
and local government bodies. The largest of these transactions has been with Herefordshire Council, however, most have been with Foundation Trusts 
(such as Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, 2gether NHS Foundation Trust and University Hospitals Birmingham NHS Foundation 
Trust).  The Trust also engages in activity with the Welsh Assembly Government (primarily through the Local Health Boards of Powys and Monmouth) 
which accounts for over £17m of income.  The Trust also engages with HM Revenue and Customs in relation to income tax, NI and VAT transactions.

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds, certain of the Trustees for which are also members of the 
Trust board.

The Trust received £878k (2015/16, £666k) in funding in respect of donations from Wye Valley NHS Trust Charitable Fund in respect of capital and 
revenue payments.  In addition, the Trust received £21k (2015/16, £21k) in respect of payment for the provision of management and administrative 
services and £40k (2015/16, £40k) in respect of fundraising costs relating to the operation of the charitable fund.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During the year 2016/17, Wye Valley NHS Trust has had a significant number of material 
transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. Those entities where 
transactions during the year were greater than £100k and/or outstanding balances at 31 March 2017 were greater than £50k are listed below:

There were none to report

The non-NHS payable figure presented above includes Non-NHS payables - revenue (£8,284k; 2015/16 £8,498k) and non-NHS payables - capital 
(£1,498k; 2015/16 £1,710k).  Other borrowings reported relate to loans from the DoH in relation to capital investment and revenue support.
IFRS7 requires the Trust to disclose the fair value of financial liabilities.  The PFI scheme is a non-current financial liability where the fair value is likely to 
differ from the carrying value.  The Trust has reviewed the current interest rates available on the market and if these were used as the implicit interest 
rate for the scheme the fair value of the liability would range from £50,796k to £55,988k.
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31. Losses and special payments

Total Value Total Number
of Cases of Cases

£s
Losses 136,463 443
Special payments 10,967 19
Total losses and special payments and gifts 147,430 462

Total Value Total Number
of Cases of Cases

£s
Losses 121,571 286
Special payments 4,939 22
Total losses and special payments 126,510 308

The total number of losses cases in 2016-17 and their total value was as follows:

The total number of losses cases in 2015-16 and their total value was as follows:
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32. Financial performance targets
The figures given for periods prior to 2009-10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set for those years.

32.1. Breakeven performance Restated
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Turnover 93,562 98,537 107,984 116,785 121,544 171,898 175,798 173,450 182,637 178,046 177,567
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,308 1,126 544 (5,091) 1,707 3,700 340 (861) (1,786) (19,540) (37,172)
Adjustment for:

Timing/non-cash impacting distortions:
Pre FDL(97)24 agreements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Prior Period Adjustments 441 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Adjustments for impairments 0 0 0 6,750 (986) (1,631) (115) 2,855 2,008 (462) (54)
Adjustments for impact of policy change re donated/government 
grants assets (248) 69 (86) (103) (454) 22
Consolidated Budgetary Guidance - adjustment for dual accounting 
under IFRIC12* (494) (675) (1,750) 0 1,053 734 0 0
Absorption accounting adjustment 0 0 (9) 0 0
Other agreed adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 (2,029) 0 0 0 0 0

Break-even in-year position 1,749 1,126 544 1,165 46 (1,958) 294 2,961 844 (20,456) (37,204)
Break-even cumulative position (160) 966 1,510 2,675 2,721 763 1,057 4,018 4,862 (15,594) (52,798)

*

Restated
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

% % % % % % % % % % %

Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover 1.87 1.14 0.50 1.00 0.04 -1.14 0.17 1.71 0.46 -11.49 -20.95
Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover -0.17 0.98 1.40 2.29 2.24 0.44 0.60 2.32 2.66 -8.76 -29.73

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, the Trust’s financial performance measurement needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury measuring 
Departmental expenditure.  Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall 
budgeting purposes, is excluded when measuring Breakeven performance.  Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the removal of the donated asset and government grant reserves) to 
maintain comparability year to year.

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been restated to IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis.

Wye Valley NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2016-17
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32.2. Capital cost absorption rate

32.3. External financing
The Trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.

2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Cash flow financing 42,394 20,358
Finance leases taken out in the year 0 0
Other capital receipts 0 0
Charge against external financing requirement 42,394 20,358
External financing limit (EFL) 43,825 22,969
Under/(over) spend against EFL 1,431 2,611

32.4. Capital resource limit
The Trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

2016-17 2015-16
£000s £000s

Gross capital expenditure 6,191 10,055
Less: book value of assets disposed of 0 0
Less: capital grants 0 0
Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets (333) (667)
Charge against the capital resource limit 5,858 9,388
Capital resource limit 6,799 9,794
(Over)/underspend against the capital resource limit 941 406

The Trust's Capital Resource Limit (CRL) consists of two elements
 (i) that against which schemes governed by IFRIC12 are managed (£0k; 2015/16 £342k)
 (ii) that against which operational schemes are measured (£6,114k; 2015/16 £9,388k)

Expenditure recorded against the former element covers capital expenditure relating to the PFI scheme.

33. Third party assets

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

£000s £000s
Third party assets held by the Trust 0 0

The dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast) average 
relevant net assets based on the pre audited accounts and therefore the actual capital cost absorption 
rate is automatically 3.5%.  The calculation of the Trust's average relevant net assets indicates a 
negative value and as a consequence PDC dividends payable are zero.

The Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the NHS Trust on behalf of 
patients or other parties.  This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported 
in the accounts.

The undershoot against the plan relates primarily to slippage against the capital programme resulting 
the in value of loans drawn down being lower than planned.
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STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RESPONSIBILITIES AS 
THE ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER OF THE TRUST

The Chief Executive of the NHS Trust Development Authority has designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Offi cer 
to the trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accountable Offi cers are set out in the Accountable Offi cers Memorandum issued by the Chief 
Executive of the NHS Trust Development Authority. These include ensuring that:

-  there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and assist in the implementation of corporate 
governance;

-  value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;

-  the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and conform to the authorities which 
govern them;

-  effective and sound fi nancial management systems are in place; and

-  annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the fi nancial year and the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash 
fl ows for the year.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable 
Offi cer.

I confi rm that, as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust’s auditors are unaware, and I have taken all the 
steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the trust’s auditors are aware 
of that information.

I confi rm that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the 
annual report and accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is fair, balanced and understandable.

Signature

Chief Executive

Date: 26th May 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ACCOUNTS

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each fi nancial year. The Secretary of State, 
with the approval of the Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the trust and of the income 
and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash fl ows for the year. In preparing those accounts, directors are required to:

-  apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury;

-  make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

-  state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the 
accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the fi nancial 
position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned direction 
of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confi rm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the accounts.

By order of the Board

Signature

Chief Executive

Signature

Finance Director

Date: 26th May 2017


